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\1' WILLIAMS
& COMPANYp.c.

21 1st Avenue NW
P.O. Box 1010

Le Mars, lA 51031
Phone (712) 546-7801

Fax (712) 546-6543
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council
City of Webster City

Webster City, lowa

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Webster City, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Aud itors' Responsibil ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material m isstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia-l
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Webster City as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 20 to the financial statements, Land and Construction in Progress was understated
in fiscal year 2019. These amounts are corrected on the accompanying financial statements. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary lnformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison lnformation, the Schedule of the City's Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of City Contributions and the Schedule of Changes in
the city's Total OPEB Liability, Related Ratios, and Notes on pages 4 through 11 and 61 through 70 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The other supplementary information included on pages
71 through 87 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements.

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fin-ancial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion,
the other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued a report dated
December 23, 2O2O on our consideration of the City of Webster City's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Webster City's internal controls over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Webster City's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Wi////,,* )qory,/,C
Certified Public Accou ntants

Le Mars, lowa
December 23,2020
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY
Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ending June 30, 2020

As management of the City of Webster City, we offer readers of the City of Webster City's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial aciivities of the Cityof
Webster City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. This section should be read in conjunciion
with the financial statements and the accompanying notes that follow. lt should also be noted
that the information contained here will provide information on both the governmental operations
and the business type activities of the City.

Financial Hiqhliqhts

r The City had the 2019 Electric URD project completed during fiscalyear 2020.o The City had the 2019 Street lmprovement project completed during fiscal year 2020.o The City issued $4,100,000 in Road Use Tax Revenue Bonds.

Overview of Fi cial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Webster City's
basic financial statements. The City of Webster City's basic financial statements are compris-ed
of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary
information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statementi
themselves.

Governm nt-Wide Financial nts

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Webster City's finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Webster City's assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as useful indicators of whether the financial position of the City of Webster City is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving the rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unusei
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Webster
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the City of Webster City include public safety, public works, health and social services, culture
and recreation, community and economic development and general government. The business-
type activities of the City of Webster City include the operation of electric, water, and sewer
utilities.
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The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Webster City itself (known
as the primary government), but also a legally separate airport authority for which the City of
Webster City is financially accountable and a trust known as the Fred Fuller Trust that was
created for the sole benefit of the City. Financial information for these component units are
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.
The Electric, Water, and Sewer utilities function as departments of the City of Webster City, and
therefore have been included as an integral part of the primary governmeht.

Fund Financ Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Webster City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds for the City of Webster City can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the governmenlwide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds
with similar information presented for the governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government's near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City of Webster City maintains numerous individual governmental funds. lnformation
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt
service fund, and Brewer Creek Estates fund, of which all are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated preientation.
lndividual fund data foreach of these non-majorgovernmental funds iJproviOeO in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Webster City adopts an annual combined budget for all of its funds except private
purpose trust funds and internal service funds. A budgetary comparison schedule has been
provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary Funds: The City of Webster City maintains different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The City of Webster City uses enterprise funds to
account for its Electric, Water, and Sewer utilities. lnternal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Webster City's various
functions. The City of Webster City uses an internal service fund to account for self-insured
dental/vision insurance. The internal service fund will be found in the governmental activities.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the electric, water and sewer utilities, all of which are considered major funds of
the City of Webster City. Conversely, the internal service fund is combined int,o a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Webster
City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

Nofes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analvsis

The largest portion of the City of Webster City's net position (7oo/o) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.9. Land, Construction in progress, Land improvements, Structures and
lmprovements, Machinery and equipment, and lnfrastructure) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Webster City uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City of Webster City's investments in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Webster City's Net Position
Gor,ernmentalActivities BusinessTypeActivities
6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2020 6/30/2019

Total
6130/2020 6/30t2019

$ 16,968,104 $tZ, 849,261 $ 20,974,753 $ 30,337,932 $37,942,857 $43,187,193
6,535,837198,000 6,337,837

39,597,820 36,874,926 31,515,647 30,502,993 $71,113,467 $67,377,919
56,763,924 49,724,187 58,828,237 60,840,925 115,592,161 110,565,112

802,835 83s,152 1,504,299 1,560,33S 2,307,134 2,395,490
1,263,660

13,021,763
936,649

9,147,343
2,O 17,238 1,668,880

19,739,272
3,280,898

31,590,955
2,605,529

28,886,615

Current and Other Assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets, net of
depreciation

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of
Resources
Current and other liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Deferred lnflows of
Resources
Net Position:
Net lnvestment in Capital
Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

14,285,423 10,
18, 192

992 20,586,430 21,408,152 34,871,853 31,492,144

4,579,827 4,221,482 253,014 107,151 4,832,841 4,328,633

31,875,707
6,407,749

418,053

30,739,232
4,900,777

613,856

22,618,490
221,582

16,653,020

20,632,834
544,603

19,708,523

54,494,197
6,629,331

17,O71,O73

51,372,066
5,445,380

20,322,379
$ 38,701,509 $ 36,253,865 $39,493,092 $ 40,885,960 $ 78,194,601 $77 ,139,825

An additional portion of the City of Webster City's net position (8.5%) represents resources that
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balances of
unrestricted net position ($17,071,073) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.
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At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Webster City is able to report positive balances
in all three categories of net position, for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
business-type activities.

City of Webster City's Changes in Net position

Gor,emmentar Activities Business Type Activties Totar
6/30t2020 6t30t2019 6t3ot2o2o 6t3ot201g 6t3ot2o2o 6130t2019

Rercnues:

Program Rer'enues:

Charges for Senices

Operating Grants &
Contributions

Capital Grants &
Contributions

General Rer,enues:

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Other

Total Rer,enues

$ 838,877 $ 917,225 $15,115,772 $ 15,382,532 $ 15,954,649 $16,2ss,757

1,285,118 1,055,055 1,285,118 1,055,055

108,192 93,375 43,594 151,786 93,375

3,944,746

895,808

814,062

3,884,380

820,201

1,336,155

3,944,746

895,808

2,719,891

3,884,380

820,201

3,315,9801,905,829 1,979,825
7,886,803 8,106,391 17,065,195 17,362,357 24,951,998 25,468,748

Expenses:

Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Senices

Culture & Recreation
Community & Economic
Dewlopment

General Gorernment

lnterest & Fiscal Charges

2,641,358

2,420,540

19,632

1,382,974

424,013

256,229

269,'108

2,445,858

2,464,361

36,308

1,326,687

398,860

232,206

141,365

2,641,358

2,420,540

19,632

1,382,974

2,445,858

2,464,361

36,308

1,326,687

1,870,793

1,629,212

13,029,885

1,908,547

1,491,497

12,538,096

424,013

256,229

269,1 08

1,870,793

1,629,212

13,029,885

398,860

232,206

141,365

1,908,547

1,491,497

12,538,096
7,413,854 7,045,645 16,529,890 15,938,140 23,943,744 22,983,785

Water Utility

Sewer Utility

Electric Utility

Total Expenses
lncrease in Position Before
Transfers

Transfers

lncrease in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Position - Beginning,
as Restated

Ending Net Position

472,949

1,952,555

1,060,746

373,379

535,305

(1,952,555)

1,424,217 1,008,254 2,484,963
(373,37e)

2,425,504

36,253,865

22,140

1,434,125

34,815,740

(1,417,250)

40,885,960

24,382

1,050,838

39,835,122

1,008,254

77,139,825

46,522

2,484,963

74,654,862

36,276,005 34,819,740 40,910,342 39,835,122 77,186,347 74,654,862
$38,701,509 $36,253,S65 $39,493,092 $40,S85,960 $78,194,601 $77,139,825

Statement of Activities. The government's net position increased by $t ,OOB,2S4 during the
fiscal year. Net position in the governmental activities increasedby $2,425,S04. Net polition
in the business type activities decreased by $1,417,250.
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Governmental Activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Webster City's net
position by $2,425,504. The increase was caused by COVID relief funds received of $t bZ,3t 3
as well an increase of transfers in of $1 ,579,176.

The main sources of revenue for the governmental activities are from property taxes, other taxes
(including local options sales tax), and grants and contributions. The City of Webster City
received $3,944,746 in property tax revenue, $895,808 in other taxes, $1,28-5,118 in operating
grants and contributions, and $76,124in capital grants and contributions.

Business'type Activities. The net position of the businesstype activities of the City of Webster
City decreased by $1 ,417,250.

The goal of the City of Webster City is to have the revenues exceed the expenses in the
Businesstype activities. This goal was obtained for all utilities, for the year ending June 30, 2020
before other financing sources.

The electric utility is the main function of the City of Webster City Business-type Activities making
up 760/o of the total charges for services. Since most sewer utility usage is based on a per unit
water usage, with the exception of industrial sewer, the revenues for these two functions should
remain close. Rates are monitored in each of these utilities on an on-going basis to maintain
their financial stability.

Financial Analvsis of Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Webster City uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Webster City's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Webster City's financing requirements. ln particular,
unreserved fund balances may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Webster City's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $10,894,943; with the prior year being 97,034,327, the
increase forthis yearwas $3,860,616. Ending fund balance is classified as $551,065 is non-
spendable, $4,843,165 is restricted, $1,229,099 is committed, $3,594,g53 is assigned and
$676,761 is unassigned.

Revenues from the City's governmental funds totaled $7,944,966 with taxes accounting for
$3,955,781 of that amount. lntergovernmental activities, including local option sales tax and
road use tax, represented another $2,318,992 of the total governmental revenues.

Total expenditures for the governmental funds were $10,404,264. The six main activities that
make up these expenditures are public works for $2,355,336, public safety for $2,634,775, debt
service for $758,936, culture and recreation for 91,210,069, community and economic
development for $369,960, and capital projects for $2,825,2g9.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Webster City. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $4,079,427. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both the unassigned fund balance to the
total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 97o/o of the total general fund
expenditures.
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The fund balance of the City of Webster City's general fund increased by $408,552 during the
current fiscal year, due primarily to the sale of assets of $140,505 and new capital leases reiated
to public safety of $121,854.

The debt service fund ended the year with a $133,276 fund balance
this fund balance by reducing future tax levies.

The City intends to reduce

The Brewer Creek Estates fund balance increased $31,806 due to transfers in. The ending
balance is shown as unrestricted for ($2,604,990).

The Road Use Tax fund balance decreased $278,363 due to an increase in expenditures. The
ending balance is shown as non-spendable of $58,622 and restricted of $1,764,g03.

The 2020 2nd St Reconstruction was a new capital project fund in fiscal year 2020. The ending
fund balance was $3,427,892 as a result of transfer in of bond proceeds.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Webster City's proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail

Total net position of the electric utility totaled $19,601 ,635, the water utility totaled $10,88b,032,
and the sewer utility totaled $9,006,425. The total change in net position for these three funds
was ($408,856), ($678 ,321), and ($330,073) respectively. Other factors concerning the finances
of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Webster City's
business-type activities.

Governmental and Proprietarv Funds Budqetarv Hiqhliqhts

The City amended their budget one time during fiscal year 2020.

CaoitalAsset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Webster City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2020, amounts to $71 ,113,467 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure.

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o The completion of the 2019 Electric URD Project
. The completion of the 2019 Street Reconstruction project
. The purchase of SCBA equipment.
o The purchase of police vehicles.
o The purchase of 2020 Bucket Truck.
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Gorcrnmental ActiVties

City of Webster City's Capital Assets
(Net of Depreciation)

Business Type Activities Total
6t30t2020 6t30t2019 6t30t2020 6t3ot2o1s 6t30t2020 6t30t2019

Land

Structures & Equipment

Construction in Progress

Total

$ 5,700,673

30,607,582

3,289,565

$ 5,713,604 $

30,411,843

749,479

1,194,147 $ 1,194,147 $

29,882,778 28,952,334

438,722 356,512

6,894,820

60,490,360

3,728,287

$ 6,907,751

59,364,177

1 ,105,991
$ 39,597,820 $ 36,874,926 $ 31,515,647 $ 30,502,993 $ 71 ,113,467 $ 67,377,919

Long'term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Webster City had total bonded
debt outstanding of $26,409,938. Of this amount, $3,855,000 comprises debi backed by the full
faith and credit of the government. The remainder of the City of W'ebster City's debt represents
bonds secured solely by specified revenue source (i.e. revenue bonds).

Total outstanding liabilities includes an estimated liability for compensated absences, other post-
employment benefits and net pension liability. The total estimate for compensated absences is
$704,291with $354,548 being for governmental activities and $34g,243 being for business-type
activities.

General Obligation and Rer,enue Bonds

GorernmentalActiVties BusinessTypeActivities
6t30t2020 6t30t2019 6t30t2020 6t3ot2o1s

Total

6130t2020 6t30t2019
General Obligation Bonds

Relenue Bonds

Notes Payable

Capital Leases

Total

$ 3,855,000 $ 4,260,000 $
5,796,995 1,752,816 15,405,000 16,389,000

1,352,942 1,554,622

87,647

-$ -$ 3,855,000

21 ,201,995
1,352,942

87,647

$ 4,260,000

18,141,816

1,554,622

$ 9,739,642 $ 6,012,316 $ 16,757,942 $ 17,s43,622 $ 26,497,584 $ 23,956,438

The City of Webster City's total longterm liabilities increased by g2,453,500 during the fiscal
year.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt, including tax increment financing. A
government entity may issue to 5o/o of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limit for the
City of Webster City is approximately $18,455,344. With the General Obligation Debt being
$3,855,000 and the Tax Increment Debt being $1,696,995, the City of WebstJr City is at 30% o-f
the debt limit.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budqets and Rates

. City contribution rates for Municipal Police and Fire Retirement System of lowa
decreased from 26.02 in FY1 9 to 24.41 in FY20 but increased to 25.31 o/o for Fy21.
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City contribution rates for lowa Public Employees Retirement System of lowa stayed at
9.44% in the regularclass and decreased from1Q.21% to 9.91% in the protectiveclass
(Volunteer Fire) for FY20 and decreased again to 9.61 for Fy21.

The City continues to work hard to bring new businesses and jobs to the community as
well as help existing businesses grow and expand. Several future developments have
been discussed with anticipation of ground breaking to begin in the spring of 2021.

The community's housing shortage is being addressed with the completion of Brewer
Creek Estates and private developers.

The City has taken great strides to address nuisance and unsafe properties in the
community. Although this is a lengthy process with additional costs involved for legal and
abatement costs, the City has taken possession of several in the past year with more in
mind.

The City has worked with Bolton & Menk Engineering the past few years to determine
the need for a new waste water treatment plant. The design phase should be complete
at the end of December 2020.

TheCitygave$150,000of small businesshardshiploansto 47 local businesses. The
program was launched by our Community Vitality Director to help those businesses that
were negatively impacted by COVID closures and restrictions. The majority of the loans
will be forgivable and ranged from 92,500 to $5,000 each.

The City received a Wellmark Grant in the amount of $96,928 in Fy21 to install new
outdoor workout and playground equipment at East Twin Park. Several community
members donated to various fundraising events for the park which were used to match
the grant along with in-kind work.

a

o

a

a

a

These factors, if known, were considered in doing the City of Webster City 202012021 Budget.

Reouest for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Webster City's
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. For questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information,
please feel free to contact the City of Webster City, Finance Director, 400 Second Street, pO
Box217, WebsterCity, lA 50595.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Component Units
Webster City

Activities

$ 12,624,882 $
2,250,000

Total

8,641,969 $ 21,266,851 $
2,250,000 4,500,000

1.170.383

475,720 $ 't'12,130
- 2,497,635

5,893
1,650

67,635

7,548

67,635

Fuller
Trust

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables (Net, where appticable, of allowance for

uncollectibles)
Accounts
Taxes
Subsequent Year Taxes
Accrued lnterest
Notes Receivable
lnternal Balances
Due from Other Governmental Agencies

lnventories
Prepaid Assets
Land Held for Resale
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Noncurrent Assets:

Notes Receivable
Land
Construction in Progress
lnfrastructure, Property and Equipment, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unamortized bond refunding related deferred outfows
Pension related deferred outflows
OPEB related deferred outflows

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Waqes
Other Accrued Expenses
Customer Deposits
Claims lncurred But Not Reported
Deferred Revenue
Accrued lnterest Payable
Payables from Restricted Assets:

Accrued Revenue Bond lnterest
Noncurent Liabilities:

Due within one year:
Revenue Bonds Payable
General Obligation Bonds
Notes Payable
Capital Lease
Compensated Absences and Benellts

Due in more than one year:
Revenue Bonds Payable
General Obligation Bonds
Notes Payable
Other Post Employment Benefits
Capital Lease
Compensated Absences and Benelits
Net pension liability

Total Liabilities
Deferred lnflows of Resources

Unavailable Revenue - Subsequent Year property
Taxes
Unavailable Revenue
Pension related deferred inflows
OPEB related deferred inflows

Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Debt Service
Specillc Tax Levies
Streets
Capital Projects
Permanent Funds- nonexpendable

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

54,4B7
98,412

4,263,718
35,844

267,157
(3,286,899)

410,818
84,712

164,973

1,788,759 1,788,759

36,402
2',tQ,299

3,286,899

'l,162,475

I 16,087
2,311,480

6,337,837
1,194,147

438,722

1,064,716
435,784

't,451 ,227
't07,785
21,192

347,494

3,678

750,000

201,681

1S3,23;

14,655,000

'l,151 ,261
61,815

166,505

218,240

22,618,490

221,582

1,224,870
98,412

4,263,718
72,246

477,456

410,818
1,247 ,187

281,060
2,311,480

6,535,837
6,894,820
3,728,287

'l,064,716
1,234,063

134

2,516,142
152,987
122,145
347,494

27,000
3,678

25,590

948,000
415,000
201,681

41,341
373,606

20,253,995
3,518,664
1,'t51 ,261

135,947
46,306

330,685

4,263,718
5,000

487,646

54,494,197

329,268
769,708

3,850,305
1,236,560

443,490
'17

200

64,129

198,000
5,700,673
3,289,565

798,279

802

1,064,915
45,202

100,953

27,000

25,590

1 98,000
415,000

41,341
190,368

5,598,995
3,5'18,664

74,132
46,306

164,180
777

4,263,718
5,000

269,406
41

31,875,707

107,686
769,708

3,850,305
1,236,560

443,490

85,862 85,862

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY,IOWA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Functions/Proorams Exoenses
Charges for

Services

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions Contributions

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Social Services
Culture and Recreation
Community and Economic Development
General Government
Debt Service

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water System
Sewer System
Electric System

Total Business-Type Activities:

Total Primary Government

Component Unit:
Webster City Airport Commission
Fuller Trust

$ 2,641,358 $
2,420,540

19,632
1,382,974

424,013
256,229
269 108

7,413,854

48,544 $
282,414

288,144
144,105
75,670

189,504
1,089,883

5,731

,285,118

$
16,057

36;
76791

1 08,1 92

1,870,793
1,629,212

1,810,503
1,836,13B

131

7,335
36,259

11 1 11

43,594

$ 22,862.800 S 1 $ 1,285.1 18 $ 151,786

$ 160,004$ 47,623 $ $ 212,386T-
General Revenues:

Property Taxes
Local Option Sales Tax
Hotel/Motel Taxes
Commerical/lndustrial Tax Replacement
lnterest and lnvestment Gains and Losses
Miscellaneous

lnterfund Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net position

Net Position - beginning

Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - beginning, as restated
Net Position- ending

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and in Net Position

Unit
Governmental

Activities
Business.Type

Activities
Webster Gity Fuller

TrustTotal Airoort Comm rssron

$ (2,403,310)
(1 ,032,1 86)

(1e,632)
(1,088,731)

(188,141)
(180,559)
(269,1 0B)

(5,1e1,667)

$ (2,403,310)
(1,032,186)

(1e,632)
(1,088,731)

(188,141 )
(180,559)
(269,1 08)

(5,1 B1 ,667)

$ (52,955)
243,185

(479,810)

(52,e55)
243,185

(479,810)
(28e,580)

(5,471,247)

(289,580)

(5,181,667) (289, 580)

$ 100,005

3,944,746
895,808

85,183
111,563
246,784
370,532

1,952,555
7,607,171

2,425,504

36,253,865
22,140

36,276,005
-5-JB-'Jo-1so-g-

263,340
561,545

(1,952,555)
(1,127,670)

(1,417,250)

24,382
40,910,342

$ 39,493,092

3,944,746
895,808

85,183
111,563
510,124
932,077

62,184

9,000
3,1 56

$ (273,064)

74,694

74,694
(1e8,370)

2,808,335

2,808,335
$ 2,609,965

6,479,501 74,340

40,885,960 77,139,825

1,008,254

46 522
77,186,347-S-28-re4Fbl-

174,345

465,499

465,499

_$______ 63e,844

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds
June

Debt Service Governmental Governmental
Funds

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables (Net, where applicable, of allowance

for uncollectibles)
Accounts
Taxes
Subsequent Year Taxes
Accrued Interest
Notes Receivable
Due from Other Governmental Agencies

lnventories
Prepaid Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Other Accrued Expenses
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities
Deferred lnflows of Resources

Unavailable Revenue - Subsequent Year Property
Taxes
Unavailable Revenue - Delinquent Property Taxes
Unavailable Revenue " Other

Total Deferred lnflore of Resources
Fund Balances

Non-Spendable:
lnventories
Prepaid Expenses
Permanent Fund

Restricted:
Specific Tax Levy
Streets
Capital Projects
Economic Development Activities

Committed:
Police Activities
Economic Development Activities
Community Development Activities

Assigned:
Capital Projects

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflom of Resources
and Fund Balances

$ 3,269,320 $
800,000

cz,ocJ
54,364

2,2't4,8',t9
9,244

202,293
26,090

122,175
39,918

100,594

2,214,8't0
38,497

26,090
22,863

129,s25 $

14,893
661,541

1,172,776
750,000

4,1 10,010 $
700,000

1,834
29,155

1,387,367
26,600

465,157
72,642

247,569

12,513,019
2,250,000

54,487
98,412

4,263,718
35,844

465,157
41 0,818

84,712

1,060,224
45,202

'100,953

4,263,718
69,347

84,712
22,863

443,490

902,145
3,792,522

't,'t91
147,307

3,497
't,214,620

10,982

3,594,853

66'1,541
11,142

135,883
58,622

288,213
5,284

359

58,622

1,764,803

1,387,367
19,708

133,276

Reconstruction

$ 3,830,159 $ 1,229 $

402,267

3,427,892

443,490

768,869
2,027,719

,1,191

147,307

3,497
1,2't4,620

10,982

166,96't

S 6 651 637 $ 806 qqo $ 2.1'17.281 S 3 830 150 g 1 )to q 6.792.765 S 20 1q9 n30

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30. 2020

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (page 15)

lnfrastructure, property, equipment and land held for resale used in
governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

lnternal service funds are used by management to fund and maintain the City's
medical/flex costs provided to user departments and are included in the
statement of net position.

Assets such as notes receivables and property taxes are not available to pay
for current period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Prepaid expenses are reported in the governmental activities but are not
reported in the funds as they do not provide current economic resources.

Accrued interest expense from the balance sheet that require current financial
resources from governmental activities.

798,279
(269,406)

$ 10,894,943

39,597,820

(31,107)

542,091

142,110

(25,5e0)

528,873

(12,947,631)

$ 38,701,509

Pension related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources are not due and payable in the current year and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds, as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

Long{erm liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:

General Obligation Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Capital Leases
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liabilities

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities (page 12)

$

$ (3,933,664)
(5,7e6,ees)

(87,647)
(354,548)

(2,774,777\

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Funds
For the Year En.led .lrna 3n 2020

Debt
Special Revenue Capltal Proiects

Road Use 2020 2nd St Brewer Creek
Other

Governmental
Total

Governmenlal

Taxes
Special Assessments
Licenses and Permits
lntergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Contributions
Refunds/Reimbursements
Revenue from Use of Property
lnterest on lnvestments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Social Services
Culture and Recreation
Community and Economic Development
General Government
Capital Projects
Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
lssuance of Debt
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Equipment
Transfers In

Transfers Out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balances - beqinning of year

Fund balances - end of year

$ 2,076,967 $

163,968
281,776
428,928

7,061
6,389

53,267
169,544
139,546

482,411 $
4,788

14,209

128,1 60

6,856

1,089,8B5

1,243,248

933,122
4,167

3,955,781
4,7BB

163,968
2,318,992

433,095
7,061

22,814
217,427
169,544
244,975

$ 1,396,403 $

1,911,275
910,783

19,6B0
1,01 0,394

144,342
153,758

16,425
36,000

97,3681,205

30,775

723,500
201,305

199,675
225,618

76,451
BB5,72B

2,634,775
2,355,336

19,680
1,210,069

369,960
230,209

2,825,2991,908,796
71

(R26 447\ (79.55'l) l'1 53.363) .907.477\ (29.194\ (2.459,298)

121,854
140,505
972,695

5,000
5,330,369

4,1 00,000

361,867

4,221,854
145,505

6,725,931

(79,551 )

61,000

31,806408,552

3.719 a2A ,1t e27 2.101.788

(27B,363) 3,427,892 350,280

3.636.680

3,860,616

7.034.32712 63A 7qA\

s 4 12R 3Rn q 1aa ?76 1 423425 S 3 427 R9) q 3.9B6.960 $ 10 R94 943

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year ded June 30. 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 17)

Governmental funds report capital outlays, including infrastructure, as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciatlon expense. Capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the
current year as follows:

Expenditures for capital assets
Depreciation expense

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as revenue whereas the
statement of activities reports the gain or loss on the disposal of capital assets. This is the effect
on the change in net positlon on the statement of activities.

Capital Contributions reported in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources and are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The effect ofthe change in prepaid insurance which is not reported in the governmental funds as
it is not available to provide current financial resources.

Governmental funds report economic development notes receivable and property taxes as
revenue when it becomes available, but the statement of activities includes these assets as
revenue when originally issued.

Accrued interest expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds.

The effect of bond premiums and discounts are shown in the governmental funds when new
debt is issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statementof
Activities.

Governmental funds do not reflect the change in accrued compensated absences as it does not
consumecurrentfinancial resources. TheStatementofActivitiesreflectsthechangeinaccrued
compensated absences through expenditures.

lnternal service funds are used by management to fund and maintain the city,s insurance
policies provided to user departments and are included in the statement of net position. The net
revenue of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Pension expenses reported in the statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the qovernmental funds.

The issuance of long{erm debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. The
amount by which payments exceeded proceeds in the current year is as follows:

Proceeds from debt issuance
Repayments of longterm debt

Change in net position of governmental activities (page 14)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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@ 4,005,957
(1 ,199,662)

$ 3,860,616

2,806,295

(1 97,307)

91,767

16,245

(14e,e32)

(13,645)

8,445

(28,610)

(5,B73)

(235,671)

$

(4,221,8s4)
495,028 (3.726.826\

$ 2,425,504



CITY OF WEBSTER CIry, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2020

Governmental

Water Sewer Electric
Activities
lnternal

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables (Net, where applicable, of allowance for

uncollectibles)
Accounts
Accrued lnterest
Notes Receivable
Due from Other Funds

lnventories
Prepaid Assets
Land Held for Resale
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Notes Receivable
Land
Construction in Progress
lnfrastructure, Property and Equipment, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Unamortized bond refunding related defered ouufows
Pension related def€ned outflows
OPEB related deferred outflows
Total Oeferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabllities

Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Other Accrued Expenses
Customer Deposits
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Claims lncurred But Not Reported

Accrued Revenue Bond lnterest
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurent Liabilities:
Due within one year:

Revenue Bonds Payable
Compensated Absences and Benefits
Notes Payable

Due in more than one year:
Revenue Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
Total Other Post Employment Benefits
Compensated Absences and Benefits
Net pension liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflows of Resources
Pension related deferred inflows
OPEB related deferred inflows
Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Debt Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 1,419,470
600,000

$ 1,925,601

450,000

151,617
5,',125

45,887
81,424
22,561

712,827

89,752

62,703
zJ,o?z

1,420

511,401

35,472

't2,806

32,012

$ 5,296,898
1,200,000

$

Total

8,641,969
2,250,000

1,1 70,383
36,402

210,299
4,517,268
1,162,475

1 16,087
2,311,480

6,337,837
'1,194,147

438,722

778

1,064,716
435,784

1,451,227
107,785
21,'t92

347,494
1,230,369

3,678

750,000
183,238
201,681

'14,655,000

1,151,261
61,815

166,505

218,240

22,618,490

221,582

Service

$ 1 1 1,863

215,747
34,055

189,965
11,429

259,385
19,387

828,801
19,848

210,299
4,471,381

865,304
59,471

2,3't1,480

99,191

1 01,905
26,093
4,795

718,968

150,000
41,923

1,920,000

14,288
32,587

134787

6,337,837
221,935
419,335

141

1,064,716
246,841

1,286,619
58,040
't4,977

347,494

3,678

1 1 1,863

11 1363

4,556
4,556

4,691

27,000

31,691

74,1_32

74,'132
'105,823

41,703
41,703

(31,107)

__$_19L1!4

600,000
105,843
201,681

12,735,O00
1,'151,261

34,721
1 01,906

49,674 44,948 123,618

57

9,409,579

221,582

7,199,562 6,009,349

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business Tvoe Activities

Water
System

Sewer
Svstem

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Operating and Maintenance
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome (Loss)

Non-Operating lncome (Expense) :

lnterest lncome
lnterest Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Corn Belt Reimbursements

Total Non-Operating lncome (Expenses)

lncome (Loss) before Contributions and Transfers

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Contributed Capital Revenue
Transfers ln
Transfers (Out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position- Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated

Net Position . Ending

6,693 260,969

$ 1,810,503
19,370

$ 1,836,138
14,683

1,829,873

1,358,573

115

18,758

47,613
(59,67B)

7,335
125,511

(817,860)

1,850,821

1,259,053
36s 364

17

226,404

39,360
(4,7e5)

36,259

(627,301)
(68s,014) (5e1 ,042)

(678,321) (330,073)

1 1,563,353 9,312,1 16
_ 24,382

1 1,563,353 9,336,498

$ 10,88s,032 $ 9,006,425

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Business Activities Governmental
Activities

Electric
Svstem Total

lnternal
Service

$ 1 1,469,131
890

11,

10,800,879
576,830

$ 15,115,772 $
532 943

15,648,71

1,297,724

1,297,724

'1,303,597'13,418,505

1,394,736
11,377,709 14,813,241 1,303,597

590,312

176,367
(571,232)

(1,080,944)
'l .1 09.546

835,474 (5,873)

263,340
(635,705)

(1,080,944)
1 .1 09.546

(366.263) (343.763)

224,049

(632.905)

43,594
125,511

(2.078.066)

491,711 (5,873)

(632,905)

(408,856)

20.010.491

(1,908,e61)

(1,417,250)

40.885.960

(5,873)

(25,234\
24,382

20,Q10,491 40,910,342 (25,234)

$ 19,601 ,635 $ 39,493,092 $ (31,1 07)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Bus iness Tvpe Activities

Water
Svstem

Sewer
Svstem

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Paid to Employees for Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Corn Belt Reimbursements
Principal Paid on Notes and Bonds
lnterest Paid on Notes and Bonds

Net Cash (Used) for Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON.CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers From (To) Other Funds
Due From (To)Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of Redeemed CDs
Payments Received from Notes
Purchase of lnvestments
lnterest and Dividends on lnvestments

Net Cash Provided (Used) for lnvesting Activities

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Unrestricted
Restricted

(627,301)
517,309

(1 09 ,992)

650,000

58,177
(250,000)

43,287

708,177

513,784

(206,713\

1,132 604

(253,323)

2,178,924

$t 388 $ 1,92s,601

$ 1,813,242
(988,679)
(433,930)
390,633

$ 1,902,729
(980,244)
(397 ,570)
524,915

(406,967) (182,738)

(145,000)
(5e,678)

(611,64s)

(692,349)
718,968
26,619

(274,000)
(4,7e5)

,533

$ 1,925,601

$ 1,925,601

$ 1,419,470
226,918

$ 1,646,388

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Business Type Activities Governmental
Activities

Electric
Svstem Total

Internal
Service

$ t2,007,400
(e,401,315)
(1 ,014,303)

591 782

(1,574,876)
1 ,1 09,546
(766,681)
51 99
747 110

(632,e05)
(840,247\

(1,473,152)

15,723,371
(11,370,238)

1,297,724
(1,287,213)

$ $

(1 ,845,803)
2,507,330 10,51 1

(2,164,581)
1,109,546

(1,185,681)
572

(1,952,555)
396,030

(1,556,525)

3,100,000
209,149

202,408

3,750,000
209,149

(250,000)
303,872

4,013,0213 511 557

10,51 1

101 352

$ 6,858,739 $ 10,430,728 $ 111,863

1,883.077

4,975,662

2,143,538

8,287,190

$ s,296,898
1,561,841

T----o€-5s-7g9

$ e,041,969
1,788,759-$-to,43o-ng

$ 111,863

(Continued)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY,IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Business Activities

Water
System

Sewer
System

Reconciliation of Operating lncome (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating lncome (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating lncome (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Miscellaneous Non-Cash Expense
(lncrease) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
lnventories
Deferred outflows of resources

lncrease (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Other Accruals
Unearned Revenue
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources
Customer Deposits
Other Post Employment Benefits

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 18,758 $ 226,404

452,542 365,364
3,274

(21,e21)
41,285
4,795

(16,631)
(3,0e7)

(8e,854)
2,486

51,908
(5,5e3)

(50,586)
3,262

(ee,626)
31,399

1,420

(28,671)
28,899

(2,53e)

(28,013)
32,352

(2,06e)
371,875-S---eo.ffi-s- 298,511

T-- 524p15-

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related Financing
Activities:

Contributed Capital $ 7,335 $ 36,25e

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Business Type Activities Governmental
Activities

Electric
Utilitv Total

lnternal
Service

590,312 $ 835 474 $ (5,873)

576,830

19,847
(3,671)
39,901

(14,8e5)

1,394,736
3,274

55,124
(12,361)

(100,53e)
(s,147)

67,436
160,280

14,481
(1,078)

(54,149)
145,863

19,532
(11,596)

910

758
(24,09e)
13,000

25,815

188,983
87,596

8,266
(1,078)
2,535

84,612
19,532
(6,e88)

1,001 70 1 671 856
2 507 330

16,384-F----T"5]I

$ $ 43,594 $

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSTION
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

Agency Fund Private Purpose
B.L.U.E Trust Fund Totals

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Due to Other

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted
Total Net Position

$

777

777

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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777

777

$ 25,363 $

25,363

26,140

26.140

777

777



CITY OF WEBSTER CIry, IOWA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Private
Purpose

Trust Fund
Additions

lnterest lncome
Miscellaneous

TotalAdditions

$ 196
8,995
9,1 91

1,654

7,537

17,826

$ 25,363

654

Deductions
Culture and Recreation

Total Deductions

Changes in Net Position

Net Position Beginning of Year

Net Position End of Year

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note1. SUMMARYO F SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES

The City of Webster City, lowa is a political subdivision of the State of lowa located in Hamilton
County, and was incorporatedin 1874, under the laws of the State of lowa, later amended in 1g74
under the Home Rule City Act. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government
with the council members elected on a non-partisan basis and administers the following functions
as authorized by its charter: public safety, public works, health and social services, culture and
recreation, community and economic development and general government services. The City also
has municipal water, sewer, and electric utility systems, which are governed by the City Council.

The City's financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

A. Reportinq Entitv

For financial reporting purposes, the City of Webster City, lowa, has included all funds,
organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. The City has also considered all
potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion
would cause the City's financialstatements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing
body, and (1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for
the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

These financial statements present the City of Webster City, lowa (the primary government) and
its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the City's reporting
entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the City.

Discretelv Presented Component Units

Webster City Airport Commission

The government-wide financial statements include the Webster City Airport Commission
("airport commission") as a component unit. The airport commission is a legally separate
organization. The board of the airport commission is appointed by the Webster City City
Council. lowa Statutes provide for circumstances whereby the City can impose theirwillon
the airport commission. The airport commission can create a potentialfinancial benefitto or
burden on the City. As a component unit, the airport commission's financial statements
have been presented as a discrete column in the financial statements. The information
presented is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Separate financial statements are not
issued for the Webster City Airport Commission.

Fuller Trust

The government-wide financial statements include the Fuller Trust as a component unit.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF S IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO IES (Gontinued)

The Fuller Trust is a legally separate organization. The board of Fuller Trust is elected by
the general public and can provide a financial benefit or burden to the City. As a component
unit, the Fuller Trust's financial statements have been presented as a discrete column in the
financial statements. The information presented is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
Separate financial statements are not issued for the Fuller Trust.

Jointlv Governed Orqanizations - The City also participates in several jointly governed
organizations for which the City is not financially accountable or that the nature and
significance of the relationship with the City are such that exclusion does not cause the
City's financialstatements to be misleading or incomplete. City officials are members of the
following Boards and Commissions: Hamilton County Assessors' Conference Board,
Hamilton County Emergency Management Commission, and Hamilton County Joint Eg11
Service Board.

B. Basis of Presentation

ide Financial tatements - The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmentalactivities, which are supported by property
tax, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues are reported separately
from business type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
services. The City's general, special revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent
funds are classified as governmental activities. The City's Medical/Flex internal service fund
is also classified as a governmentaltype activity.

The Statement of Net Position presents the City's nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in three categories.

Net investment in capital assefs consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes and other debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position results when constraints placed on net position use are either
externally imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. The City first uses restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted assets are available.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two
preceding categories. Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources
imposed by management which can be removed or modified.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include 1 ) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Gontinued)

function and 2) grants, contributions and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particularfunction. Property tax and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The City does not allocate indirect costs. Certain expenses of the City are accounted for
through the internal service fund on a cost-reimbursement basis.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change
in the City's net position resulting from the current year activities.

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and
proprietary funds. Major individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported as
separate columns in the find financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor governmental funds.

The City reports the following major governmentalfunds:

1) General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. lt is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The sources of revenue include property taxes, charges for services, fines and
fees, licenses and permits, as well as state and federal grants. The expenditures of the
General Fund relate to generaladministration, police and fire protection, maintenance of
public streets, economic development, and culture and recreation.

2) Debt Service Fund - Accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of
general obligation debt principal, interest and related costs.

3) Special Revenue - The Road Use Tax Fund is used to account for revenues collected
on state Excise Tax distributed by the State for City street projects.

4) Capital Proiect - The Brewer Creek Estates Fund is used to account for costs and
resources for residential development.

5) Capital Proiect - The 2020 2nd St Reconstruction Fund is used to track revenue and
expenses related to street reconstruction.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

The Water Utility is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's
water system.

The Sewer Utility is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's
sewer system.

The Electric Utility is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City
owned electric system.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES - (Continued)

ln addition, the City reports the following fund types:

lnternal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, or
to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Private-purpose trust funds are used to report any trust arrangement not properly
reported in a pension trust fund under which principal and income benefit individuals,
private organizations, or other governments.

Joe E. Barr Trust
Edgar Foster Trust
Calvary Cemetery Trust

Zella Silvers Trust
Mulberry Church Trust

Agency funds are used to account for activity of other organizations where the City is responsible
for the accounting.

C. Measurement Focus a Basis of Accountino

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days after year end.

Property tax, local option sales tax, intergovernmental revenues (shared revenues, grants and
reimbursements from other governments) and interest are considered to be susceptible to
accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the City.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments and compensated
absences are recognized as expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt are
reported as other financing sources.

Under terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, when
program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available
to finance the program. lt is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources
to such programs, followed by categorical block grants and then by general revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses consist of cost of sales and services, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

lnternal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other
governments, on a cost-recovery basis. The City's internal service fund is presented in the
proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in an agency or custodial capacity for others and
therefore not available to support City programs.

D. Assets. Liabil and Fund Equitv

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements:

Cash. Pooled lnvestments and Cash Equivalents - The cash balances of most City funds,
including the airport discretely presented component unit, are pooled and invested. lnterest
earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund unless otherwise provided by law.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all shortterm cash investments that are highly
liquid (including restricted assets) are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and, at the day of purchase, have a
maturity date no longer than three months.

lnvestments consist of the following:

Tvpe Method

Nonnegotiable Certificates of Deposit Cost
Government Obligations Fair Value
Commercial Paper Fair Value
Mutual Funds - Fuller Trust Fair Value

Custodial Credit Risk - the City has no policy in place regarding custodial credit risk and
deposits with financial institutions, however, deposits are insured by the state sinking fund,
which provides for additional assessments against depositories to avoid loss of public funds.

lncludino Tax lncrement Financino -Prooertv Tax Receivable
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

increment financing, in governmental funds is accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date
the tax asking is certified by the City Council to the County Board of Supervisors. Current year
delinquent property taxes receivable represents unpaid taxes from the current year. The
succeeding year property tax receivable represents taxes certified by the City Council to be
collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By
statute, the City Council is required to certify its budget to the County Auditor by March 15 of
each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget
certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although
the succeeding year property tax receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is deferred
and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied.

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and
March of the current fiscal year with a 1%% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is
based on January 1, 2018 assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1,
2019 through June 30,2020 and reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified to the
County Board of Supervisors in March2019. Any county collections on the 2019-2020 tax levy
remitted to the City within 60 days subsequent to June 30,2020, are recorded as property tax
revenue.

Customer Accounts and Unbilled Usaoe - Accounts receivable in the Enterprise Funds includes
services billed priorto June 30,2020 and an estimate of services provided through June 30,
2020 buI not billed.

Short-Term lnterfund ceivables/Pavables - During the course of its operations, the City has
numerous transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services, construct assets,
and service debt. To the extent certain transactions between funds have not been paid or
received as of June 30,2020, balances of interfund amounts payable or receivable have been
recorded as "due to other funds" and "due from other funds", respectively in the fund financial
statements. Any residual balances outstanding between governmentalactivities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as interfund balances.

Due from Governments - Due from other governments represents amounts due from the
State of lowa, various shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other governments.

lnventories - lnventories of the proprietary fund types are valued at cost, which approximates
market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type
inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed.

Res Assets - Funds set aside for payment of Enterprise Fund revenue notes are
classified as restricted assets since their use is restricted by applicable note indentures.

Prepaid ltems - Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June
30,2020 are recorded as prepaid items.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles and
infrastructure assets (e.9. roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and similar items which are
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC OUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

immovable and of value only to the government) are reported in the applicable governmental or
business type activities columns in the government-wide Statement of Net Position and in the
Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Position. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value.
Acquisition value is the price that would have been paid to acquire a capital asset with
equivalent service potential. The costs of normal maintenance and repair not adding to the
value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Reportable capitalassets
are defined by the City as assets with initial, individual costs in excess of $5,000 for general
capitalassets and $25,000 for infrastructure assets and estimated useful lives in excess of one
year. Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Buildings 39 - 150 Years
Utility Plant 25 - 90 Years
Machinery& Equipment 3-30 Years
lnfrastructure 20 - 100 Years
Land lmprovements 50 - 100 Years

Deferred Outflows of Resources -Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred outflows of resources consist of
unrecognized items not yet charged to pension and OPEB expense and contributions from the
employer after the measurement date but before the end of the employer's reporting period.

Compensated Absences - City employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused
vacation and sick-leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or
retirement. A liability is recorded when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statement. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial
statements only for employees that have resigned or retired. The compensated absences
liability has been computed based on rates of pay in effect at June 30,2020. The compensated
absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be paid by the General Fund.

Lonq-term Liabilities - ln the government-wide and proprietary fund financialstatements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental or business type activities column in the Statement of Net Position and the
proprietary fund Statement of Net Position.

ln the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources.

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the lowa Public Employees' Retirement System and the Municipal
Fire and Police Retirement System (Systems') and additions to / deductions from the Systems'
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
Systems'. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments are
reported at fair value. The net pension liability attributable to the governmental activities will be
paid primarily by the General Fund.
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

IOPEB Liabil the totalOPEB
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information has been determined
based on the City's actuary report. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The total OPEB liability attributable
to the governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General Fund.

Deferred lnflows of Resources - Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available.
Available means collected within the current year or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. Deferred inflows of resources in the
governmental fund financial statements represent the amount of assets that have been
recognized, but the related revenue has not been recognized since the assets are not collected
within the current year or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current year. Deferred inflows of resources consist of property tax receivable
and other receivables not collected within sixty days after year end.

Deferred inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position consist of succeeding year
property tax and tax increment financing receivable that will not be recognized as revenue until
the year for which they are levied and the unamortized portion of the net difference between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and OPEB.

Fund balances - ln each of the City's governmentalfunds (generalfund, special revenue funds,
capital projects funds, and debt service funds) are displayed in the following classifications
depicting the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which
resources can be used:

. Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
a spendable form (such as inventories and prepaid amounts) or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

. Resfrrcted fund balance - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constraints imposed by external providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels
of government), or imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

. Committed fund balance - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority.

o Assrgtn ed fund balance - amounts the government intends to use for specific purposes that
do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

. Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts can
be reported only in the City's General Fund.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES - (Gontinued)

Fund balance amounts represent the nature of the net resources that are reported in a
governmental fund. The City fund balance classifications include non-spendable resources,
restricted, and non-restricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts. When the City
incurs an expenditure and both restricted and unrestricted amounts are available, the City considers
restricted amounts to have been spent. When the City incurs an expenditure for an unrestricted
amount, committed amounts are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned
amounts for purposes in which any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

lnterfund Transactions - lnterfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are
recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except interfund services provided and used transactions and
reimbursements, are reported as transfers.

E. Budqets and Budqetarv Accountinq

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary
lnformation. During the year ended June 30, 2020, disbursements exceeded budgeted amounts in
the Public Safety, Community and Economic Development, and Business Type Activities functions.

Note 2 - CASH AND CASH EOUIV NTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City's deposits at June 30, 2020, were entirely covered by Federal Depository lnsurance
collateralized with securities or letters of credit held by the City or by a multiple financial institution
collateral pool in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. Chapter 12C provides for
additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public funds. The
City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligation of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally
insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances;
certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-
end management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or
improvement certificates of a drainage district.

lnterest Rate Risk - This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City does have a formal
investment policy that limits investment maturities (no more than 397 days) as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. lnformation about
the exposure of the City's investments to this risk, is as follows:
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Note 2 - GASH AND GASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS - (Gontinued)

Fuller Trust - Discretelv nted Comoonent Unit:

Custodial Credit Risk: This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Fuller Trust funds do not have
custodial credit risk policies for investments.

lnterest Rate Risk: This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Fuller Trust does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturities (no more than 397 days) as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. lnformation about
the exposure of the Fuller Trust's investments to this risk is as follows:

Type of lnvestment Fair Value Less Than 1 Year
Fixed lncome Bonds
Mutual Funds

$ 668,412
1,829,223

$ 668,412
1,929,223

$ 2,497 635 2 635

The Fuller Trust uses the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs
are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The recurring fair value measurement for the Fixed lncome Bonds of $668,412 and the Mutual
Funds of $1,829,223 were all determined using the last reported sales price at current exchange
rates (Level 1 inputs).

The Fuller Trust had no other investments meeting the disclosure requirements of Governmental
Accounting Standards Boards Statement No. 72.
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Note 3 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2020 are net of allowance for uncollectibles. The allowance for
uncollectibles of the enterprise funds of the primary government was $207,003 at June 30, 2020.

The City has received federal and state grant funds for economic development and housing
rehabilitation loan programs to various businesses and individuals. The City records a loan
receivable when the loan has been made and funds have been disbursed.

It is it City's policy to record unavailable revenue for the net amount of the receivable balance. As
loans are repaid, revenue is recognized. When new loans are made from the repayments,
expenditures are recorded. lnterest received from loan repayments is recognized as revenue when
received in cash. Any unspent loan repayments at year-end are presented as committed fund
balance in the fund financial statements.

Note 4 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

At June 30,2020, amounts due from other governments were as follows

Due from the lowa Department of Revenue for Road use Tax allocation
Due from the lowa Department of Revenue for COVID Relief Funds
Due from the lowa Department of Revenue for Local option sares taxes
Due from the lowa Department of Revenue for Local Transient Guest taxes

Total Governmental Funds

Note5 . INTERFUNDRECEIVA S AND PAYABLES

As of June 30,2020, short-term interfund borrowings were as follows

Fund Due To Fund Due From

$ 135,883
188,846
72,642
13 447

$ +t 0,818

Electric
Electric
Electric

Electric
Sewer

Water
Sewer
Brewer Creek Estates
Non-Major Governmental
Non-Major Governmental

Amount
$ 218,968

511,401
2,601,219

639,793
45,887

$ 4.517 ,269

The purpose of the interfund balances is to help finance shortterm cash flow shortages of
various funds and interfund borrowing.
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Note6 - CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:
Beginning

Governmental Activities Balance Additions Deletions
Ending

Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Right of way

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improlements

Structures and improrements

Machinery and equipment

Streets

Trails and paths

Sidewalks

Storm sewers

Bridges

Dam

Traffic signals

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for

Land improlements

Structures and impror,ements

Machinery and equipment

Streets

Trails and paths

Sidewalks

Storm sewers

Bridges

Dam

Traffic signals

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Gor,emmental actiVties capital assets, net

149,775 $ 162,706

3,524,592 984,506

6,463,083 3,674,367 1,147,212 8,990,238

$ 4,926,805 $

786,799

749,479

$ 4,913,874

786,799

3,289,565

2,503,172

7,595,671

5,422,878

29,942,124

2,070,885

1,312,874

2,458,622

2,960,409

200,000

183,657

49,905

432,652

590,1 32

19,571

153,417

201,427

2,503,172

7,645,576

5,551,419

30,532,256

2,070,885

1,332,445

2,612,039

3,16'1 ,836

200,000

183,657

304,111

54,650,292 1,447,104 304,111 55,793,285

629,291

4,407,326

2,810,300

13,450,250

442,278

288,439

611,718

1,289,203

133,334

176,310

51,820

166,949

252,552

575,727

41,418

19,098

30,425

47,661

6,667

7,345

252,408

681,111

4,574,275

2,810,444

14,025,977

483,696

307,537

642,143

1,336,864

140,001

183,655

24,238,449 1,199,662 252,408 25,185,703

30,411,843 247,442 51,703 30,607,582

$36,874,926 $ 3,921,S09 $1,198,915 $39,597,820
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Note6. CAPITALASS S - (Gontinued)

Construction in progress is related to street projects, airport improvements, and utility projects

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Gor,ernmental ActiMties :

General Gorernment
Public Safety
Public Works, which includes the depreciation of infrastructure

Culture and Recreation

Total gorcrnmental actiMties - depreciation expense

$ 16,372
120,114

837,669

225,507

$ t ,199,662

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance Additions Deletions
Business.Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improlements
Machinery and equipment
Utility Plant
Total capital assets being depreciated

$ 1,194,147 $ $
356,512 2,155,616 2,073,406

$ 1,194,147
438,722

1,550,659 2,155,616 2,073,406 1,632,869

205,040

76,803,825 2,328,453 205,040 78,927,238

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 47,851,491 1,394,736 201,767 49,044,460

Total capital assets being depreciated,
net

28,952,334 933,717 3,273 29,882,778

Businesstype activities capital assets,
net $ 30,502,993 $ 3,089,333 $ 2,076,679 $ 31,515,647

Construction in progress at June 30, 2020 consisted of costs associated with the water, wastewater and
electric system improvements.

3,008,978
5,736,280

68,058,567
255,047

2,073,406

3,008,978
5,786,287

70,131,973
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Note 6 - CAPITAL S - (Gontinued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows

Bus ines s-Type ActiMties

Water
Sewer
Electric

$452,542
365,364
576,830

Governmental

Activities

$ 5,700,673
3,289,565

30,607,582
2,192,523

(3,933,664)

(5,796,9e5)

(87,647)
(96,330)

Original
lnterestRates lndebtedness

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1 ,394,736

Reconciliation of Net lnvestment in Gapital Assets:

Land

Construction in Progress
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Unspent Bond Proceeds
Less: General Obligation Bonds Payable

Rerenue Bonds

Capital Leases
Retainage Payable

Date of Final
lssue Maturitv

Business.
Type

Activities

$ 1,194,147
438,722

29,882,778

(8,843,159)

(53,99B)

Net lnwstment in Capital Assets

NoteT - LONG-TERMDEBT

General Obliqation Bonds

$ 31,875,707 $ 22,618,490

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities and projects. General obligation bonds have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities. These bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the City.

General obligation bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Balance
6130t20

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
General Obligation Debt

Corporate purpose bonds 06129116 06101129

Total Governmental Activities - General Obligation Debt

2.00-2.50% $ 4,590,000 $ 3.855.000 $ 415,000

$ 3,855,000 $ 415,000

The balances shown on the Statement of Net Position is net of unamortized bond premiums of
$78,664.
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Note7 - LONG-TERM DEBT-(Gontinued)

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governme nta I Activities
Years Princi lnte rest

$
Total

2021

2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2029
Total

415,000
425,000
430,000
440,000
450,000

1,695,000

78,563 $
70,263
61,763
53,1 63
44,363
83,725

493,563
495,263
491,763
493,1 63
494,363

1,778,725
$ 3,855,000 $ 391,840 $ 4,246,840

Revenue Bonds

The City also has issued revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired
or constructed asset to pay debt service. These funds have been expended on construction of the
water treatment facilities, electric system improvements, and street reconstruction.

Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30,2020 are as follows:

Date of
lssue

Final
Matu

Original
InterestRates lndebtedness

Balance
6t30t20

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
Revenue Debt:

Revenue Bonds - RUT
Community Center Revenue Note

- Direct Borrowing
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Revenue Debt:

Water Utilitv
Revenue Bonds

Electric Utility
Revenue Bonds
Total Business Type Activities

06101112 06t01t32 0.60 - 3.25%

04t17t19 11t01t36 2.75 - 4.200/o

$ 4,100,000 $ 198,000
1,696,995

5,796,995 198,000

2,070,000 150,000

13,335,000 600,000

_juuqgpqo $ 75o,ooo

04t21t20
07t01t02

06/01/35
07t01t42

3.49o/o
Variable

$ 4,100,000
2,600,000

3,200,000

13,900,000
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Note7 - LONG-TERM DEBT-(Gontinued)

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Busi ness-Type Activities
Revenue Debt

Years Princi Interest
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2037

Total

Gove rnme nta I Activities
Revenue Debt

Years Princi lnterest

750,000 $
775,000
790,000
815,000
840,000

4,605,000
4,810,000
2,020,000

531,817
511,277
489,819
466,822
442,442

1,782,527
899,850
85,433

Total
1,281,817
1,286,277
1,279,819
1,281,822
1,282,442
6,387,527
5,709,850
2,105,433

2021

2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2035

Total

158,989
1 35,1 80

128,467
120,475
112,204
426,793
172,616

356,989
356,1 80

357,467
357,475
357,204

1,784,793
1,784,616

$ 15,405,000 $ 5,209,987 $ 20,614,987

Total
$ 198,000 $

221,000
229,000
237,000
245,000

1,358,000
1,612,000

$ 4,100,000 $ 1,254,724 $ 5,354,724

A repayment schedule has not been established forthe community center revenue note as of June
30,2020.

Revenue R ndinq Bonds

On April 17,2019, the City issued $13,900,000 in advance refunding Revenue Bonds with interest
rates ranging from 2.75%-4.20%. The city issued the bonds to advance refund $12,485,01g of
outstanding series 2012A Electric Revenue Bonds with interest rates ranging from2.25% to 5.65%.
$13,726,250 was deposited into an irrevocable escrow to complete the advance refunding through
an in-substance defeasance. As a result, the series 2012Abond is considered to be defeased and
the escrow assets and liability for the notes are not included in the 2020 financial statements. The
call date of the 2012A bond is November of 2021. The difference between the net carrying amount
of the series 2012A bond and the reacquisition price of the 2012A bond created a deferred outflow
related to debt of $1,1 40,767. This balance is amortized over the remaining life of the 2019 bond,
which matures Novemberof 2036. As of June 30,2020, amortization of the deferred outflow, which
is recognized as interest expense, totaled $76,051. The new 2019 issuance reduces debt service
payments by $999,035, with an economic gain of $665,806. Annual principle payments on the
2019 issuance began in November of 2019. lnterest payments are due semi-annually each May
and November. The balance of the bond at June 30, 2020 was 913,335,000.
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Note7 - LONG-TERMDEBT-(Continuedl

Notes Pavable - Direct Borrowino

Date of
lssue

Final
Maturitv InterestRates

Original
lndebtedness

Balance
6130120

Due Within
One Year

Electric Utility:

USDA Note
USDA Note
Total

08/1 5/1 6
12t05t17

06t15t26
11t15t27

0%
0o/o

$ 1,000,000
$ 1,000,000

$ 605,042 $ 100,840
747,900 100,841

$1,3s2,942 $ 201,6&

The City received $1 ,000,000 of USDA note proceeds on August 15, 2016 and then transferred the
proceeds to Hamilton Hospital for use on a building expansion. The hospital pays the City for the
note and the City then makes the payments USDA.

The City received $1,000,000 of USDA note proceeds on December 5,2017 and then transferred
the proceeds to Mary Ann's Specialty Foods. The proceeds were used to purchase equipment.
Mary Ann's Specialty Foods pays the City for the note and the City makes the payment to USDA.

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Electric Utilitv - Notes Payable
Years Principal Total

$ 201,681 $
201,681
201,681
201,681
201,681
344,537

201,681
201,681
201,681
201,681
201,681
344,537

$ 1,352,942 $ r,352,942

Capital Leases

ln fiscal year 2020, the City entered into a capital lease agreement for the acquisition three police
vehicles. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore,
has been recorded at the present value of its minimum lease payments at the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
Governmental

Activities
Asset:

Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total

$

$ 110,140

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital lease, together with
the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30,2020.

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2028
Total

133,394
(23,254)
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Note 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

Year
Ending Governmental Activities
June 30, Principal lnterest Total
2021
2022 42,672 2,454 45,126
2023 3,634 59 3,693
Minimum Lease Payments 96,703
Less: Amount Representing lnterest (e,056)
Present Value of M inimum Lease Payments $ 87,647

Ghanqes in Lonq-Term Liabilities

Longterm liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Primary Government:
Gove rnmenta I Activites:
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation
Rerenue Bonds

Capital Leases
Compensated Absences

Gor,ernmental ActiVty
Long-Term Liabilities:

325,938

6,338,754 4,576,402 820,966 10,094,190

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

$ 4,260,000 $
1,752,816 4,100,000

121,854
354,548

405,000 $
55,821
34,207

325,938

3,855,000 $
5,796,995

87,647
354,548

$ 415,000
198,000

41,341
1 90,368

844,709

Busi ness.Type Activities:
Bonds Payable:

Rer,'enue Bonds
Notes Payable - Direct Borrowing
Compensated Absences

Business-Type Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 18,212,020 $ 34s,743 $ 1,454,078 $ 17,107,685 $ 1,134,9'1e

16,389,000
1,554,622

268,398 349,743

984,000
201,680
268,398

15,405,000
1,352,942

349,743

750,000
201,681
183,238
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Note 8 - TRANSFERS

The following is a summary of transfers between funds:
Brewer

2020 2nd St Creek
C*neral Reconstruction Estates Water Sewer

Total
Non-Major Transfer Out

General
Road Use Tax
Electric
Sewer
Water
Non-Major
TotalTransfer ln

$ $ $ $ $ $ 155 $ 155
125,000
632,905
627,301
817,860

4,648,221

'125,000

632,905
't 15,900
98,890

511 ,401
718,970

4,099 ,998 61,000 125,511 361,712
$ 972,695 $ 5,330,369 $ 61 ,000 $ 125,51 1 $ $ 361,867 $ 6,851,442

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund that
the requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting
the receipts to the debt service fund, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund
to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations.

Note 9- PENSION PLAN

Plan description - IPERS membership is mandatory for employees of the City, except for those
covered by another retirement system. Employees of the City are provided with pensions through a
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by lowa Public
Employees' Retirement System (IPERS). IPERS issues a stand-alone financial report which is
available to the public by mail at P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 50306-9117 or at
www.ipers.org.

IPERS benefits are established under lowa Code chapter 97B and the administrative rules
thereunder. Chapter 97B and the administrative rules are the official plan documents. The following
brief description is provided for general informational purposes only. Refer to the plan documents
for more information.

Pension Benefits

A Regular member may retire at normal retirement age and receive monthly benefits without an
early-retirement reduction. Normal retirement age is age 65, anytime after reaching age 62 with 20
or more years of covered employment, or when the member's years of service plus the member's
age at the last birthday equals or exceeds 88, whichever comes first. These qualifications must be
met on the member's first month of entitlement to benefits. Members cannot begin receiving
retirement benefits before age 55.

The formula used to calculate a Regular member's monthly IPERS benefit includes:

. A multiplier based on years of service.
o The member's highest five-year average salary, except members with service before June

30,2012 will use the highest three-year average salary as of that date if it is greater than the
highest five-year average salaries.
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Note 9- PENSION PLAN - (Continued)

Protection occupation members may retire at normal retirement age which is generally at age 55
and may retire any time after reaching age 50 wilh 22 or more years of covered employment.

The formula used to calculate a protection occupation members' monthly IPERS benefit includes:

o 60% of average salary after completion of 22 years of service, plus an additional 1 5% of
average salary for years of service greater lhan 22 but not more than 30 years of service.

o The member's highest three-year average salary.

lf a member retires before normal retirement age, the member's monthly retirement benefit will be
permanently reduced by an early-retirement reduction. The early-retirement reduction is calculated
differentlyforservice earned before and afterJuly 1 ,2012. Forservice earned before July 1 ,2012,
the reduction is 0.25% for each month that the member receives benefits before the member's
earliest normal retirement age. For service earned starting July 1 ,2012, the reduction is 0.50% for
each month that the member receives benefits before age 65.

Generally, once a member selects a benefit option, a monthly benefit is calculated and remains the
same for the rest of the member's lifetime. However, to combat the effects of inflation, retirees who
began receiving benefits prior to July 1990 receive a guaranteed dividend with their regular
November benefit payments.

Disability and Death Benefits

A vested memberwho is awarded federal Social Security disability or Railroad Retirement disability
benefits is eligible to claim IPERS benefits regardless of age. Disability benefits are not reduced for
early retirement. lf a member dies before retirement, the member's beneficiary will receive a lifetime
annuity or a lump-sum payment equal to the present actuarial value of the member's accrued
benefit or calculated with a set formula, whichever is greater. When a member dies after retirement,
death benefits depend on the benefit option the member selected at retirement.

Contributions

Contribution rates are established by IPERS following the annual actuarialvaluation, which applies
IPERS' Contribution Rate Funding Policy and Actuarial Amortization Method. Statute limits the
amount rates can increase or decrease each year to 1 percentage point. IPERS Contribution Rate
Funding Policy requires that the actuarial contribution rate be determined using the "entry age
normal" actuarial cost method and the actuarialassumptions and methods approved by the IPERS
lnvestment Board. The actuarial contribution rate covers normal cost plus the unfunded actuarial
liability payment based on a 30 year amortization period. The payment to amortize the unfunded
actuarial liability is determined as a level percentage of payroll, based on the Actuarial Amortization
Method adopted by the lnvestment Board.

ln fiscal year 202Q, pursuant to the required rate, Regular members contribute d 6.29 percent of
covered payroll and the City contributed 9.44 percentof covered payroll, fora total rate of 15.73
percent. Protective occupation members contributed 6.61 percent of covered payroll and the City
contributed 9.91 percent of covered payroll for a total rate of 16.s2 percent.

The City's total contributions to IPERS for the year ended June 30, 2020 were $302,101.
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Net Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outftows of Resources and Deferred
lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $2,303,202 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2019, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarialvaluation as of that
date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the City's share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all IPERS participating employers. At June 30,
2019, the City's collective proportion was .0398 percent, which was an increase of .002g percent
from its proportion measured as of June 30,2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $443,937. At June 30,
2020 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$80,062
(21,736)

(802)
(10,703)

8,870

$ 6,520

248,259

160,217

$ 82,935

54

261,729

14,588

302 101

$ 717.097 $ 359,305

$302,101 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ss 691

There were no non-employer contributing entities to IPERS.

Actuarial assumptions- The total pension liability in the June 30,2019 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
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Rate of lnflation
(effective June 30, 2017)

Salary lncreases
(effective June 30, 2017)

Longterm lnvestment Rate
Return

(effective June 30, 2017)

Wage Growth
(effective June 30, 2017)

2.60 percent per annum

3.25 to 16.25 percent average, including inflation. Rates
vary by membership group.

of 7.00 percent per annum, compounded annually, net of
pension plan investment expense, and including inflation.

3.25 percent per annum based on 2.60 percent inflation
and 0.65 percent realwage inflation.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2019 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience study dated March 24,2017 and a demographic assumption study dated June
28,2019.
Mortality rates used in the 2019 valuation were based on the RP-2014 Employee and Healthy
Annuitant Tables with MP-2017 generational adjustments.

The long-term expected rate of return on IPERS' investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each majorasset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real Rate

Asset Glass Allocation of Return
Domestic equity
lnternational equity
Global smart beta equity
Core plus fixed income
Public credit
Public real assets
Cash
Private equity
Private real assets
Private credit

Total

22.0%
15.0
3.0

27.0
3.5
7.0
1.0

11.0
7.5
3.0

5.60%
6.08
5.82
1.71
3.32
2.81

(0.25)
10.13
4.76
3.01

100o/o

Discount rale - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions
will be made at the contractually required rate and that contributions from the City will be made at
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the IPERS'
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on IPERS'
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rafe. The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.0 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(6.00 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.0 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.0% 7.00/o 8.0%

City's proportionate share of the net
Pension liabilig $ 4,103,381 $ 2,303,202 g 793,250

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about IPERS' fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued financial report which is available on IPERS' website at
www.ioers .orq

Payables to the pension plan

All legally required City contributions and legally required employee contributions which had been
withheld from employee wages were remitted by the City to IPERS by June 30,2020.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI)

Plan Description - MFPRSI membership is mandatory forfire fighters and police offlcers covered by
the provisions of Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa. Employees of Webster City are provided with
pensions through a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
MFPRSI. MFPRSI issues a stand-alone financial report which is available to the public by mail at
7155 Lake Drive, Suite #201, West Des Moines, lowa 50266 or at www.mfprsi.orq.

MFPRSI benefits are established under Chapter 411 of the Code of lowa and the administrative
rules thereunder. Chapter 41 1 of the Code of lowa and the administrative rules are the official plan
documents. The following brief description is provided for general informational purposes only.
Refer to the plan documents for more information.

Pension Benefits - Members with 4 or more years of service are entitled to pension benefits
beginning at age 55. Full service retirement benefits are granted to members with 22 years of
service, while partial benefits are available to those members with 4 to22yearsof service based on
the ratio of years completed to years required (i.e.,22 years). Members with less than 4 years of
service are entitled to a refund of their contribution only, with interest, for the period of employment.

Benefits are calculated based upon the membe/s highest 3 years of compensation. The average of
these 3 years becomes the member's average finalcompensation. The base benefit is 66 percent
of the member's average final compensation. Members who perform more than22years of service
receive an additional2o/o of the member's average final compensation for each additional year of
service, up to a maximum of I years. Survivor benefits are available to the beneficiary of a retired
member according to the provisions of the benefit option chosen plus an additional benefit for each
child. Survivor benefits are subject to a minimum benefit for those members who chose the basic
benefit with a 50 percent surviving spouse benefit.

Active members, at least 55 years of age, with 22 or more years of service have the option to
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Note 9- PENSION PLAN . (Gontinued)

participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). The DROP is an arrangement
whereby a member who is otherwise eligible to retire and commence benefits opts to continue to
work. A member can elect a3,4, or 5 year DROP period. When electing to participate in DROP
the member signs a contract indicating the member will retire at the end of the selected DROP
period. During the DROP period the member's retirement benefit is frozen and a DROP benefit is
credited to a DROP account established for the member. Assuming the member completes the
DROP period, the DROP benefit is equal to 52o/o of the member's retirement benefit at the
member's earliest date eligible and 100o/o if the member delays enrollment for 24 months. At the
member's actual date of retirement, the member's DROP account will be distributed to the member
in the form of a lump sum or rollover to an eligible plan.

Disabilitv and Death Benefits - Disability benefits may be either accidental and ordinary. Accidental
disability is defined as permanent disability incurred in the line of duty, with benefits equivalent to
the greater of 60 percent of the member's average final compensation or the member's service
retirement benefit calculation amount. Ordinary disability occurs outside the call of duty and pays
benefits equivalent to the greater of 50 percent of the member's average final compensation, for
those with 5 or more years of service, or the member's service retirement benefit calculation
amount, and 25 percent of average final compensation for those with less than 5 years of service.

Death benefits are similar to disability benefits. Benefits for accidental death are 50o/o of the average
final compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, or the provisions for
ordinary death. Ordinary death benefits consist of a pension equal to 40o/o of the average final
compensation of the member plus an additional amount for each child, ora lump-sum distribution to
the designated beneficiary equal to 50% of the previous year's earnable compensation of the
member or equal to the amount of the member's total contributions plus interest.

Benefits are increased annually in accordance with Chapter 411.6 of the Code of lowa which
provides a standard formula for the increases.

The surviving spouse or dependents of an active member who dies due to a traumatic personal
injury incurred in the line of duty receives a $100,000 lump-sum payment.

Contributions - Member contribution rates are set by state statute. ln accordance with Chapter 41 1

of the Code of lowa, the contribution ratewas 9.40o/o of earnable compensation forthe yearended
June 30, 2020.

Employer contribution rates are based upon an actuarially determined normal contribution rate and
set by state statute. The required actuarially determined contributions are calculated on the basis of
the entry age normal method as adopted by the Board of Trustees as permitted under Chapter 41 1

of the Code of lowa. The normal contribution rate is provided by state statute to be the actuarial
liabilities of the plan less current plan assets, with such total divided by 1 percent of the actuarially
determined present value of prospective future compensation of all members, further reduced by
member contributions and state appropriations. Under the Code of lowa the employer's
contribution rate cannot be less than 1 7 .00% of earnable compensation. The contribution rate was
24.41o/o for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The City's contributions to MFPRSI for the year ended June 30, 2020 was $216,029.

lf approved by the state legislature, state appropriation may further reduce the employer's
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contribution rate, but not below the minimum statutory contribution rate of 17.OO% of earnable
compensation. The State of lowa therefore is considered to be a non-employer contributing entity
in accordance with the provisions of the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board Statement No.
67 - Financial Reporting for Pension Plans.

There were no state appropriations to MFPRSI during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Net Pension Liabil ities, Pension Exoense. and Deferred Outflows of Resou and Deferred
lnflows of Resources Related to Pensions - At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of
$1,871 ,267 for its pro
measured as of June
liability was determine

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between City
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

portionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
30,2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
d by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The city's proportion of the net

pension liability was based on the City's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
contributions of all MFPRSI participating employers. At June 30,201g, the City's proportion was
.285% which was a decrease of .008% from its proportions measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the city recognized pension expense of $369,245. At June 30,
2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred lnflows
of Resources of Resources
$ 64,437

93,953

103,100

39,447

216,029

17,510

8,144

102,697

$

$ sto 966 $ 128 341

$216,029 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ 107,447
4,509

31,712
28,414

514
172,596
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Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Rate of lnflation 3.00 percent
salary increases 3.75 to 1s.11 percent, including inflation
lnvestment rate of return 7.50 percent, net of investment expense, including inflation
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2oo7 to June 30, 2017.

Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Blue collar combined Healthy Mortality
Table with males set-forurrard zero years, females set-fonvard two years and disabled individuals
set-fonrrard three years (male only rates), with generational projection of future mortality
improvement with 50o/o of Scale BB beginning in 2017.

The long{erm expected rate of return on MFPRSI investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future realrates (i.e., expected returns, ne-t
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the longterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 

-uOOing 
explcted inilation.

The best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each milor asset clasire summarized in
the following table:

Asset Glass
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Large Cap
Small Cap
lnternational Large Cap
Emerging Markets
Emerging Market Debt
Private Non-Core Real Estate
Master Limited Partnerships
Private Equity
Core Plus Fixed lncome
Private Core Real Estate
Tactical Asset Allocation

5.5%
5.8
7.3
9.0
6.3
8.0
9.0
9.0
3.3
6.0
6.4

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be
made at9'40o/o of covered payroll and the City contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the MFPRSI's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on MFPRSI's investments was applied to all periods of projected Senefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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ci P re of Liabil Dis
Rate - The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the city's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discou nt rate that is 1-percent lower (6.50
percent) or 1-percent higher (8.5 percent) than the current

1% Decrease
65%

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year
Current year claims and changes in estimates
Claim payments
Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year

rate

Discount Rate
7.5%

1% lncrease
8.5%

City's propoilionate share of the net
Pension liability $3,046,750 $1,971,267 $997,736

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position - Detailed information about the MFpRSI's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued MFPRSI financial report which is available on
MFPRSI's website at www.mfprsi.orq.

Pavables to the Pension Plan - All legally required City contributions and legally required
employee contributions which had been withheld from employee wages were remitted 

-by 
the City

to MFPRSI by June 30,2020.

Note 10- Emplovee Vision and Dental Plan - The City of Webster City Medical/Flex
lnsurance Fund was established to account for the City's medical and flex benefit plan. The City
has entered into an administrative services agreements with Employee Benefits System, to
administer the employee dental and vision benefit plans. The agreements are subject to automatic
renewal provisions.

Monthly payments of service fees and plan contributions to the City of Webster City Medical/Flex
lnsurance Fund are recorded as disbursements in the operating funds. Under an administrative
services agreement, monthly payments of service fees and claims processed were paid to
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield from the lnternal Service Fund, Medical/Flex lnsurance
Account.

For vision claims, the claims are limited to specified services outlined in the vision plan and the
uninsured risk of loss is minimal per employee. For dental claims, the uninsured risk of loss is
$1,000 for a policy year per employee. The City has not purchased additional commercial
insurance since claims are limited to the amounts specified in the plan.

All funds of the City participate in the vision and dental plan. Amounts payable to the medical/flex
insurance fund are based on actual claims incurred in prior years.

A liability for a claim is established if information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable.
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. The iity does not
allocate overhead costs or other non-incremental costs to the claims liability.

CIaims Liability
Gurrent Year
$ 14,000

219,530
i206,530)

__ $_22p99_
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Note 11 - DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City has nine funds with deficit equity balances at June 30,2020. The City intends to finance
these deficits from various resources including; TIF Receipts, fund transfers, ind note payments.

The individual fund deficits were as follows:

Major - Brewer Creek Estates.

Nonmajor - Second Street Reconstruction

Nonmajor - Urban Renewal Southeast TIF ...........,......
Nonmajor - Urban Renewal SW Watermain.................
Nonmajor - Van Diest T1F.......

Nonmajor - TIF Custom Meats

Nonmajor - Webster City Federal TIF
Nonmajor - City Hall Plaza.......

Nonmajor - Boone River Trail ..

Nonmajor - W Twin Park Shelter Project..........
Nonmajor - Wilson Brewer...........

lnternal Service

Note 12- RISK GEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. All of these
risks, with the exception of vision and dentalcare, are covered through the purchase of commercial
insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial coverage in
any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage compared to the f,rioryear.

Note 13- COMMITMENTS

As of June 30,2020, the City had entered into severalconstruction contracts totaling approximately
$10,024,864 of which approximately $4,017,776 has been expended to date. lrre remaining
$6,007,088 will be paid as work progresses.

Note 14 - CONTINGENCY

From time to time, the City is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of tne manag6ment
and the City attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will-have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial position or results of operations.

The City has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency
forexpendituresdisallowedundertermsofthegrants. Managementbelievessuchdisallowan-ces,if
any, would be immaterial.

The City of Webster City has entered into several development agreements with developers.

$2,604,990

573,026

20,998

4,559

2,500

1,214

30,851
'155

2,165

1,340

161,023

31,107
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The developers are constructing industrial/commercial facilities on property located in the City.
Chapter 403 of the Code of lowa authorizes cities to establish urban renewal areas and to
undertake economic development projects. ln recognition of the developers'commitment, the City
agreed to make economic tax rebate payments to the developer during the term of the agreements
in amounts which represent the property taxes paid with respect to the project by the developers in
that fiscal year, minus the amount of debt service taxes levied by taxing jurisdictions, provided,
however, that the total rebate payments during the term of the agreement do not exceed the
maximum amounts listed.

The agreement assumes that the full taxable value of the project will go on the property tax rolls as
of the dates listed below. All tax rebate payments will be made on December 1, and June 1

beginning the year after the initial incremental taxable value is placed on the property tax roll. The
tax rebate payments shall not constitute general obligation of the City, but shall be paid solely and
only from incremental property taxes received by the City from the Hamilton County Treasurer
which are attributable to each individual project.

The tax rebate payments to the developer are subject to the following conditions:

1 . Timely payment of property taxes by the developer when due and submission to the City of
a receipt or cancelled check as evidence of each tax payment. Residential developers are
not required to submit receipts.

2. Submission of documentation satisfactory to the City, at least one week prior to each
December 1 and June 1 payment date, that that project is being used as a commercial
facility.

Note 15. OTHER POSTEM ENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description - The City operates a single-employer health benefit plan which provides medical/
prescription drug benefits for employees, retirees and their dependents. Group insurance benefits
are established under lowa Code Chapter 5094.13. No assets are accumulated in a trust that
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

OPEB Benefits - lndividuals who are employed by City of Webster City and are eligible to
participate in the group health plan are eligible to continue healthcare benefits upon retirement.
Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the medical, prescription drug and dental benefits
as active employees, which results in an implicit rate subsidy and an OPEB liability.

Retired participants must be age 55 or older at retirement. At June 30, 2020, the following
employees were covered by the benefit terms:

lnactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit
payments
Active employees

Total

Total OPEB Liabilitv - The City's total OPEB liability of $135,947 was measured as of July 1 ,2019
and was determined by an actuarial valuation date of July 1 ,2019.

0

68
68
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and the entry age normal actuarial cost
method, applied to all periods included in the measurements.

Rate of inflation 2.600/o per annum
(effective June 30, 2020)

Rates of salary increase 3.25% per year, annum, including inflation
(effective June 30, 2020)

Discount rate 3.51% compounded annually, including inflation
(effective July 1 ,2019)

Healthcare cost trend rate 8.00% initial rate decreasing by .50%
(effective July 1 ,2019) annually to an ultimate rate of 4.50%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.51% which
reflects The Bond Buyer index rate for 20-year tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with
an average rating of AA/Aa or higher as of the measurement date.

Mortality rates are from the SOA RPH-2019 total dataset mortality table fully generational using
Scale MP-2019. Annual retirement probabilities are based on varying rates by age and turnover
probabilities mirror those used by IPERS.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of
actuarial experience studies with dates corresponding to those listed above.

Chanoes in Total OPEB Liabilitv

Total OPEB
Liability

Total OPEB liability beginning of year

Changes for the year:
Service cost
lnterest
Differences between expected and

actual experiences
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments

Net changes

Total OPEB liability end of year

$ 171,642

14,687
7,211

(51,199)
(6,394)

(35,695)

$ 135 947

Changes of assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.87% in fiscal year 2019 to
3.51% in fiscal year 2020.

to es in the Discount - The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1o/o lower (2.51%) or 1o/o higher (4.51%) than the
current discount rate.
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1o/o

Decrease
(2.51%\

Discount Rate
(3.51%)

1o/o

lncrease
(4.51%\

Total OPEB Liability $ 145,198 $ 135,947 $ 126,814

Sensitivitv of the Citv's Total OPEB Liabilitv to Chanoes in the Hea re Cost Trend Rates - The
following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB tiability
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1o/o lower (7.00%) or 1o/o

higher (9.00%) than the current healthcare cost trend rate.

1o/o

Decrease
(7.00%\

Healthcare
Cost Trend

Rate
1%

lncrease
(9.00%))(8.00%

TotalOPEB Liability $ 118,371 $ 135,947 $ 156,861

OPEB Exoense an Deferred Outflows/lnflows of ResoLr Related to OPEB - For the year
ended June 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $14,216. At June 30,2020, the City
reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows

of Resources

Deferred
lnflows of

Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions

Total

$ 8,355 $ 65,912

10,560
$ 8,355 $ 76,477

The amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending
June 30 Amount

$ (7,682)
(7,682)
(7,682)
(7,682)
(7,682)

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total
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ln May 2012, the City loaned Corn Belt Energy $5,000,000 for system upgrades that are not City
assets out of the Electric fund. This was done in conjunction with the issuance of the 2}12AElectric
Revenue Bonds which was refunded by 2019 Electric Revenue Bonds and will be repaid starting in
fiscal year 2032. Corn Belt Energy is reimbursing the City for all principal and interest related to the
2019 Electric Revenue Bonds.

The Electric fund has multiple loans to various entities for economic development. The related note
receivable balance as of June 30,2020 was $1,548,136.

The governmental activities has multiple loans to various entities for community betterment and
economic development. The related note receivable balance as of June 30, 202Q was $465,157.

Note 17 - TAX ABATEMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 defines tax abatements as a
reduction in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or more governments and an
individual or entity in which (a) one or more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which
they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a speciflc action after the
agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits
the governments or the citizens of those governments.

Gity Tax Abatements

The City provides tax abatements for urban renewal and economic development projects with tax
increment financing as provided for in Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of lowa. For these types
of projects, the City enters into agreements with developers which require the City, afterdevelopers
meet the terms of the agreements, to rebate a portion of the property tax paid by the developers, to
pay the developers an economic development grant or to pay the developers a predetermined
dollar amount. No other commitments were made by the City as part of these agreements.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the City abated $52,91 0 of property tax under the urban renewal
and economic development projects.

Note 18 - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS

The City entered into various development agreements for construction of commercial buildings and
land development. The City agreed to pay the developers an amount not to exceed $2,050,200
subject to annual appropriation by the City Council. The agreements require semi-annual
payments, provided the developerfollows the terms of the agreement. During the yearended June
30,2020, the City rebated $126,378 of incremental property tax to the developers. At June 30,
2020, the remaining balance to be paid on the agreements was $709,044.
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The governmentalAccounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciarv Activities.
This statement will be implemented for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2Q21. The revised
requirements of this statement will enhance the consistency and comparability of fiduciary activity
reporting by state and local governments by establishing specific criteria for identifoing fiduciary
activities and clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary
activities.

Note 20 - ACCOUNTING CHANGE/RESTATEMENT

It was determined that Construction in Progress in the Sewer fund was understated in the prior
year. The prior period adjustment increased the Sewer fund balance by $24,382. The prior period
adjustment also increased business-type activities net position by $24,382.

It was determined that Land in Governmental Activities was understated in the prior year. A prior
period adjustment was made increasing the governmental activities net position by $22,140.

Net Position June 30, 2019,as previously
reported

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Position July 1 , 2019, as restated

Sewer

$ 36,253,865 $ 9,312,116 $ 40,88s,960

Governmental
Activities

Business Type
Activities

22,140 24,382 24,382

$ 36,276,005 $ 9,336,498 $ 40,910,342
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Governmental
Funds
Actual

Proprietary
Funds
Actual

Receipts:
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
I ntergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Services
Revenue from Use of Property
Miscellaneous

Total receipts

$ 3,960,569
163,968

2,318,992
433,09s
414,519
653,823

7,944,966

$

15,115,772

1 905 829
17 021 601

16,529,890
16,529,890

491 711

43,554
125,511
078

Disbursements:
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Social Services
Culture and Recreation
Community and Economic Development
General Government
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Business-Type Activities

Total disbursements 10,404,264

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over disbursements (2,459,298)

2,634,775
2,355,336

19,680
1 ,210,069

369,960
230,209

2,825,299
758,936

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from Debt lssuance
Proceeds from Sale of Asset
Contributed Capital Revenue
Transfers ln
Transfers Out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Balances

Balances - beginning of year

Prior Period Adjustment

Balance - beginning of year, as restated

Balances - end ofyear

4,221,854
145,505

6,725,931
(4,773,376\
6,319,914

3,860,616

7,034,327

(1,417,250)

40,885,960

24,382

7,034,327 40,910,342

T--r o-sezp4t $ 39,493,092
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Total
Actual Ori inal

4,155,224
124,430

1,989,650
15,723,626

700,516
184 189

24,877,635

Budgeted Amounts
Final

Final to
Actual

Variance

$ 3,960,569
163,968

2,318,992
15,548,867

414,519
2,559,652

24,966,567

$ 3,802,441
124,430

1,818,221
15,723,626

700,516
1,791,165

23,960,399

2,529,810
3,277,392

57,235
1,817,597

362,068
384,415

5,011,411
818,501

15,893,924

$ 158,128
39,538

500,771
(174,759)
(285,ee7)
768,487

168

(104,965)
922,056

37,555
607,528

(7,8e2)
154,206

2,186,112
59,565

(635,966)

$

2

2,634,775
2,355,336

19,680
1,210,069

369,960
230,209

2,825,299
758,936

16,529,890

2,529,810
1,881,579

57,235
1,817,597

315,568
384,415

1,480,411
818,501

26,934,154
15,893 924
25,179,040 30,152,353

(6,191 ,954)

3,218,199

(1,967,587\ (301,405) 4,224,367

4,221,854
145,505

43,594
6,851,442 4,264,244

(4,264,244)
7,795,244

(7,795,244\

4,100,000 121,854
145,505

43,594
(e43,802)

(6,851 ,442) 943 802
4,410,953 4,100,000 31

2,443,366

47,920,287

24,382

(301,405) (2,091,954) 4,535,320

47,944,669

$ 50,388,035 _$__(2,0e1,e51I $
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The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary lnformation in
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for
governments with significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being
able to present budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and each major Specia-l
Revenue Fund.

ln accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all funds except the lnternal
Service Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each of the different
City offices and departments. The budgets may be amended during the year utilizing
similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the
budget and appropriations lapse at year end. The budget was amended once during the
year.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 9 major classes of expenditures
known as functions, not by fund. These g functions are: public safety, public works,
community and economic development, health and social services, culture and
recreation, general government, debt service, capital projects, and business-type
activities. Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds, and
the Enterprise Funds. Although the budget document presents functioh disbursements
by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated function level, not by fund. Legal
budgetary control is also based upon the appropriation to each office or dep-artment.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, disbursements exceeded the amount
budgeted in Public Safety, Community and Economic Development, and Business Type
Activities functions.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF

THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
IOWA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM LAST TEN YEARS*

(rN THOUSANDS)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY IN FORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
City's proportion of the net pension liability

City's proportionate share of the net pension
liability

City's covered payroll

City's proportionate share of the net pension
liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability

$ 2,790 $ 2,666 $ 2,5e5 $ 2,559 $ 2,553

83.69% 88.71o/o 86.97% 70.650/o 59.11%

0397740/o

$ 2,303

$ 3,049

7553%

036903%

$ 2,335

.035507%

$ 2,365

035876%

$ z,zsz

.036600%

$ 1,808

0.03806%

$ 1,509

85.45% 93.620/o 92.210/o 91.920/o g5.1go/o g7.61%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
a full 1O-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is
available.

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF THE CIffS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST TEN YEARS (tN THOUSANDS)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE gO,2O2O

Statutorily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

Statutorily required contribution $ 230 $ 225

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016$ 302 $ zas $ 250 $ 238 $ zsz

(302) (288) (250) (238) (232)

$ $ $ $ $

$ 3,1e8 $ 3,049 $ 2,290 $ 2,666 $ 2,595

9.44% 9.440h 8.96% 8.93% Lg4%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

$ 220 $ zoq $ 179

(230) (204) (1 7e)

$ $ $ $

$ 2,559 $ 2,553 $ 2,567 $ 2,s67 $ 2,603

8.98% 8.77% 8.58% 7.94o/o 6.88%

See accompanying independent auditors' report

$
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST TEN YEARS (lN THOUSANDS)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

Changes of Benefit Terms:

There are no significant changes in benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions

The 2018 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a demographic
assumption study dated June 2B, 2018:

. Changed mortality assumptions to the RP-2014 mortality tables with mortality
improvements modeled using Scale MP-2017

r Adjusted retirement rates.
. Lowered disability rates.
r Adjusted the probability of a vested Regular member electing to receive a deferred

benefit.
r Adjusted the merit component of the salary increase assumption.

The 2017 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of an experience study
dated March 24,2017:

o Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.00% to 2.600/o.
. Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 3.75% to 3.50% per

year.
o Decreased the discount rate from 7.50% to 7.OO%.
o Decreased the wage growth assumption from 4.00o/o to 3.25o/o.
. Decreased the payroll growth assumption from 4.00% to 3.25%.

The 2014 valuation implemented the following refinements as a result of a quadrennial
experience study:

o Decreased the inflation assumption from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent.
o Decreased the assumed rate of interest on member accounts from 4.00 percent to 3.75

percent per year.
. Adjusted male mortality rates for retirees in the Regular membership group.
. Reduced retirement rates for sheriffs and deputies between the ages of 55 and 64.
o Moved from an open 30 year amortization period to a closed 30 year amortization period

for the UAL beginning June 30, 2014. Each year thereafter, changes in the UAL from
plan experience will be amortized on a separate closed 20 year period.

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF THE CIffS PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LTABILITY

MUNICIPAL FIRE AND POLICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IOWA
LAST TEN YEARS. (tN THOUSANDS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
City's proportion of the net pension
liability

City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

City's covered payroll

City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

.28529% .29300% .30700% ,311970/o .281260/o .311910

$ 1,871 $ 1,742 $ 1,800 $ 1,951 $ 1,321 $ t,tst

$ 864 $ ASO $ AOS $ e+S $ ZSZ $ ZSZ

217% 205% 207% 231% 1790/o 142%

80% 81% 81% 780 83% 86%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30

Note: GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until
a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City will present information for those years for which information is
available.

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

MUNICIPAL FIRE AND POLICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IOWA
LAST TEN YEARS (tN THOUSANDS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Statutorily required contribution $ 216 $ 225 $ ZrA $ ZZS $ 235

Contribution deficiency (excess) $

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

Statutorily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

City's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

(216\ Q25\ Q18\ (225 Q35\

$ $ $ $

$ aas $ so+ $ eso $ 869 $ 845

24.41% 26.040/o 25.680/o 25.92% 27.77%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(244\ e40) (208) (1 97) (1 59)

$ $ $ $ $

30.41% 30.12% 26.12% 24.76% 19.90%

$ zqq $ zqo $ 208 $ tsz $ 1se

$ tst $ zgz $ zso $ zgo $ zsg

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION . PENSION LIABILITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

Changes of Benefit Terms:

There were no significant changes of benefit terms.

Ghanges of Assumptions:

The 2018 valuation changed postretirement mortality rates were based o the RP-2014 Blue Collar
Healthy Annuitant Table with males set-forward zero years, females set-forward two years and
disabled individuals set-forward three years (male only rates), with generational projection of
future mortality improvement with 50% of Scale BB beginning in 2017.

The 2017 valuation added five years projection of future mortality improvement with Scale BB.

The 2016 valuation changed postretirement mortality rates to the RP-2000 Blue Collar Combined
Healthy Mortality Table with males set-back two years, females set-foruvard one year and
disabled individuals set-forward one year (male only rates), with no projection of futurs mortality
improvement.

The 2015 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity
mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 1112 of the 1g71
11112 ot the 1994 Group Annuity Mortatity Tabte.

fhe 2014 valuation phased in the 1994 Group Annuity
mortality. This resulted in a weighting of 2112 of the 1971
10112 of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table.

Mortality Table for postretirement
Group annuity Mortality Table and

Mortality Table for postretirement
Group Annuity mortality Table and

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S

TOTAL OPEB LIABILIry, RELATED RATIOS AND NOTES
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O2O

2020 2019 2018
Service Cost

lnterest Cost

Difference between expected and actual experiences

Changes in assumptions

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB tiabitity

Total OPEB liability beginning of year

Total OPEB liability end of year

Covered-em ployee payroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

,695) (4,619) 24,665

$ 14,687 $

7,211

(51,199)

(6,3e4)

16,729 $

6,909

(24,799)

(3,458)

1 3,1 09

4,776

11,937

(2,e12)

(2.245\

(35

171,642 176,261 151 ,596

$ r 35,947 $ 171,642 $ 176,261

$ 3,631,342 $

3.7o/o

3,995,5B3

4.3%

$ 3,6e6,412

4.8o/o

Notes to Schedule of Ghanqes in the Citv's Total OPEB Liabilitv and Related Ratios

Changes in benefit terms:

There were no significant changes in benefit terms.

Changes in assumptions:

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate eachperiod. The following are the discount rates used in each period.

Year ended June 30, 2020
Year ended June 30, 2019
Year ended June 30, 2018
Year ended June 30, 2017

3.51o/o
3.87%
3.58%
4.00o/o

Note: GASB No'75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a
full 1O-year trend is compiled, the county will present information for those years for which
information is available.

See accompanying independent auditor's report
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Gov€rnm6ntal Nonmaior Funds
June 30.2020

FICA/ Work€r's M€dical/Flex Unomptoymenl police/Firo Police

Cash and Cash Equivalenls
lnvestm€nts
Rec€ivables (Net, wfiere applicable, of allowance

for uncolleclibles)
Accounts
Tax66
Subsequent Yoar Taxes
Accrued lnt€rest
Noles Receivable
Due from Oth6r Gove.nmenlal Agencies

Total Assots

Liabilitios
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Doferred lnflows of Resources

Unavailable Revenue - Subsequent Year Propsrty Taxos

Unavailable Revenue - D€linquent Property Taxes

Unavailablo Rev€nue - Olher
To(al Doforrod lnflows of R6sources

Fund Balanca6
Non-Sp6ndable:

Permanent Fund
Rostricted:

Specific Tax Lovy
Str€ets
Capital Prcjocts
E@nomic D€velopment Activities

Commifred:
Polics Activities
Economic Developmont Activities
Community Development Activities

Assigned:
Capital Prcjects

unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabiliti€s, D6ferred lnflows of R€sources
and Fund Balances

49,852 $
100,000

239,034 $$ 55,392 $ 25,022 $ 96,084 $ 3,497

21,657
240,382

4,763
106,316

'1,864

822
575,123

1,801
224,537

;
665

1,502

240,3a2

19,708

1 06,316 575,123

57,341 154,977 239,856

665 224,537

25,02a 97,56'l

3,497

5f ,341 239,856 z5,uz6 97,561
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Economic
Devolopmont

Loan

WC Comm
Rehabilitation TIFTIF TIF

Urban Renewal
TIF

SSMID

831,568 $
300,000

'149,767 $ 32$ 3$ 3,686 $ 730 $ 29,760

15

102
20,221 30,858 6,724 2a,041

3,900
246,157

6,724 2A,041

246.157

70,699

1,064,744

20,221 30,858

4,415

730 25,4473,686

149,836

1,064,784 3,686 730 25,447
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
June 30.2020

llrb.n Urban
TIF USDA Rovolving TIF TIF Housihc

Cash and Poolod lnve€tmonts
lnvs$tments
Receivables (Net, whs.e applioabls, of allowance

for uncolloc{ibles)
Account6

Subsoquont Year Taxs
Accrued lntdrst
Noles Reooivable
Duo frcm Other Governm€ntal Agenciss

Total Aesett

Liabilitio8:
Ac@unt€ Payable
Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilltl6s

Deforod lnflows of Resourc€a

Unavailable Revenuo - SubsequontY€ar Property Taxss
Unavailablo Rovsnus- D6linquentPrcpertyTaxes

Unavailable Revenu€ - Other
Total Dofsrr€d lnflow€ of Rosourc€s

Fund Balancos:
Non-Spendabl€:

Pormanent Fund
Restricted:

Specjfio Tax Levy
Streets
Cdpital Prcjeots
E@nomic Oev6lopment Activiti€s

Committed:
Polic6 Activilies
Economlc Development Aotiviti€s
Community Developm€nt Aclivities

Assigned:
Capital Prcjects

Unassign€d
Total Fund Balancos
Total Llabilltig8, D6f6rr€d lnllow6 of Resourcos
and Fund Balances

219,000

- - 2nqoR /qAl
- - 2nqq8 ,qAl

'147,307

'147,307

$ 84 $ 147,307 $ $ 2$

84

17

't7

2
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Wl$n
Br€w€r Park Clty

First Stato
Bank lnlinlty

Wobst€r City
Federal

Van Dl69t
M6dical Center

TIFTIFTIF

$ 6,713 $ 4,252 $ 11,686 $ 50,070 $ 15,036 $

15,000

15,000

70,000

70,000

15,000

1't,686 50,070

/u,uuu

6,713 4,252

26.686 S
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
June 30.2020

Town & TIF TIF TIF TIFTIF

Cash and Cash Equivalenls
lnvestments
Receivables (Net, whsr€ applicable, of allowance

for uncollectibles)

Taxes
Subs€qu€nt YearTaxes
Accrued lnterest
Notos R€c€ivable
Due lrom Olher Governmental Agencies

Total Assets

$ 12,139 $ 6,359 $ 76,077 g 7,821 $ $

1,500

15,000 7,000 13,000 4,500

Liablllties
Accounts Payable
Duo to Other Funds
Total Liabllitles

Deforred lnflows of R€sources

Unavailablo Rovonu€ - Subsequent Yoar Property Taxes

Unavailable Revenue - Delinqu6nt Properly Taxes

Unavailable Revenue - Olhgr
Total Oeferr€d lhflows of Resources

Fund Balance6
Non-Spendablol

Perman€nt Fund
R€slricledl

Specific Tax Levy
Slreets
Capital Prcjecls
Economic Developmont Aclivities

Committod:
Police Activities
Economic Development Aclivities
Community Developm€nt Activities

Assignedl
Capital Prcjecls

Unassigned
Total Fund Balanceg
Total Liabilities, Deforred lnflowE of R6sourc€s
and Fund Balanc6s

15,000 7,000 13,000 4,500

15,000 7,000

12,139 6,359

lJ,UUU

76,077 7,821

76,077 7,821

4,500
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TIF
Rldgo Rlvor

Dev6loDmenr
Stroot

Roconatruction
Sidswalk

lmpiov6ments
Stroet Brldge

Prolect

$ 839 $ $ 45,703$ 106,262$ 37,658

13,983 5,593

30,000

41,a70 517

30,000

839

45,703 78,375 42,734

(573,026)
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Governmenlal Nonmaior Funds
Junc 3n.2020

Park Sh.lrer Ca16
Fund

Total
Gov€rnmental

Nohmaiorlmprovemsnt Wilson Crossinq Hall W. S€cond
Stre6l

E Twin
Pleze Funds

Assels
Cash and Pooled lnvestments
lnv€stm€nts
Receivables (Net, where applicabl€, of allowanco

for uncoll€ctibles)
Accounts
Taxes
Subsequ€nt YearTax€s
Accrued lntorgst
Notes Receivable
Due from Other Governmenlal Agencies

Total Assets

1,654,238 $
300,000

149 $$ $ 443.171 $ 4,1'10,010
700,000

1,834
29,155

1,347,367
26,600

465,157

319

Liabiliti6s:
Accounls Payabl€
Due lo Olh€r Funds

Total Liabiliti6s

D€f€r6d lnflows of Ro€ources

Unavailable Revenue - Subsoquent Year Property Tax€s

Unavailable Rev6nue - Delinquenl Property Taxes

Def€red Rovenu€
Total Deferr€d lnflows of R€sources

_ 128.566 247,569
-92,457---t,SaO--6eS,OaO
- 161,023 - 1.340 re

1,347,367

19,708

1,191

1.191

Fund Balances:
Non-Spondable:

Permanent Fund
Restrictedl

Specific Tax Levy
Streets
Capital Prcjecls
Economic Dgvelopment Aclivities

Committed:
Police Aotivities
Economic Developmont Aclivities
Community Development Activilies

Assigned:
Capital Prcjocts

unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilltles, Def€rred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

- - - - - - - - lA4/A1
1,872,556

443,490 443,490

2,026,880
768,869

2,027,719
1,191

147,307

3,497
1,214,620

10,982

't 49

149

166,961
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN Ft'lND BALANCES
Govornmsntal Nonmalor Funds

FICA/
IPFRS

Workor'3 PollcoMedlcal/Flex Unemploymont Pollo6/Flre

Rov€nue:
Tax€s
lnteigovemm€ntal Rovonue
Chargos for Services
Contributions
R€funds/Reimbursoments
lnt€rest
Misoellansous

Tolal Revenue

$ 243,980 $
7,368

81,560 $
2,465

597,102 $
18,079

5,433 $
168

227,462 $
6,891

Expenditures:
Public Safety
Publio Works
Culture and Recreation
Community and E@nomic Developmont
G6noral Gov€rnm€nt
Capiial Prcj€cts

Total Exponditures

Excess (d€ficiency) of rgvsnues ovor expenditures

Othsr flnancing sourcs (uses):
lssuahce of D€bt
Transf€F ln
Transfere Out

Total othor financing sources (uses)

Net Chango in Fund Balanco

Fund balano€ (doflcits) -beginning ofyear

Fund balances (d€ticits) - ond ofyear

63,990
65,578
81,387

89,424
19,268
19,909

351,346
115,716
97,345

2,169
743

1,034

1,864

I,189

216,571

32,436

7 Q57 l1a.200) 8-316

42,458 368

I 247 17.782

7,957

49 3n4 '177

8,3'16

231 qto

1,287

247i1

17,782

79.779

('17,2O0)

3 497

q 57 3dl 230 As6 g 97.561 3 497
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SDgcial Revenu€ Funds

Devolopment Rohabllltatlon TIF TIF TIF
Brower Crcek

TIF
Gourl€v SSMID

$ $ 18,664 $

12,259

793 $ - $ 21,847
- 2,330

19,867

B9,869

f421n

9,369

3,750 6.405 943 15.'t07

'10,22'l

(1,076)

1 065 A60

3,750

116046

55

3 631

138

(4e)

56

(60,057) 1s,245

AO 7Ua

g 1 064 7Al 14q R1A E 36a6 $7S
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
F^,lho V.rr Fndad l"h6 ln 2nrn

Ronewal Urban
TIFTIF USDA Revolvinq TIF Houslng

Taxes
lnl€rgov€rnm€ntal Rev6nue
Charges for Seruicos
Contributions
R€funds/R6imbursements

I\4iscellanoous
Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Communiiy and Economic Development
Gon6ral Govornm€nt
Capital Prcjecls

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenu€s ovor expenditures

Olh€r financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from Debt Financing
Transfers ln
Transfers Oul

Total othor financing sources (uses)

Not Change in Fund Balance

Fund balanc€s (doficits) -beginning ofyear

Fund balanc€s (deficits) - end of yoar

37,672 1,374

122.372\

$$ 4,648
,:

447
36,000

1,374

4,637

4 637

24 1.374

24

60 14 5601 17

ad s I20 998t 14 5501 17
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Spocial Revenu6 Funds
wllson

Br6wer Park
Wobstor

City
First State

Bahk
W€b.lorClty Van Diest

F6doral Modlcal ConterInlinity
TIF

14,901 $

u7

- - 13,848 - 57,041 -

TTFTIF

67,000

:
399

$

2o;

368

101

57,04113,848

469 - 't,25e 947 10,358

,i09

6,244

't,259

10.427

947

49 123

10,358

u1 209\4.252 12 5001

$ 6.713 $ 4,252 $ 11,686 $ 50,070 $ (30.851) $ {2.500)

B1



CITY OF WEESTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Nonmaior Funds
F^r th. Y.2r Fhdad .Irn. 1n ,nrn

Town & TIF

$ 14,901 $ 6,961 $ 64,647 $ 12,180 $

TIFTIFTIFTIF

4,957Texes
lnlorgovernmental R€venu€
Chargos forSeryics
Contribulions

Refunds/R6imbuts€ments
lntorost
Miscellan@us

Totel Rovenue

103209

Exp€ndituresi
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and R€creetion
Communlty and Economic Development
General Govemm€ht
Capital PDj@ts

Total Exp€nditur6s

Excess (deficienoy) of revenues ov€r expendilures

Other financlng sourc€s (us€s):
lssuanco of Debt
Transf€rs ln
TransfeB Out

Tolal oth€r lindnojng sourcss (uses)

Not Chang€ in Fund Balanco

Fund balanc€s (deficits) -beginning ofyear

Fund balanc€s (doficits) - trd of year

527 123

9,33113,569 6,227

1 541

4,611

837 65.174 2 972 346

1,541

10 sm

6s,174

10.s03

346

(1.560)

837 2,972

4 849

$ 12 13q q $ 76.077 S 7A2l $ (1.214) S
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Ridqe River
Tiall

Streot Sidewelk
lmDtovements

Brldge
Proi€ct

St.@t

$ 9,367 $ $ $

u 13,98s 5,593

4,857

a 564 (533.740\ 11 1A1\

721 350,632

749

qo {2.165)

721

(573 7A7l 45.703

(183,108)

261 443

(1,181)

43.9'15

q 165) $ 1573026\ S 74375 4' 1al
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Nonmajor Funds
Fo. the Year Endod June 30. 2020

City
lmprovoment Wilson Cros3ing Hall W. Second park Sheltor E Twln

P6rp6tual
Car€

Total
Govornm€ntal

Nonmaior

lntorgovernmental Rev€nug
Charges for Seruic6s
Conkibulions
Ref unds/Rsimbursemants
lnterest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

Exp€nditures:
Public Saf€ty
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Community and Economic Development
General Government
Capital Prcj€cts

Total Expendituros

Exc6ss (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Oth€r financing sources (uses):
Procoeds from Debt Financing
Transfers ln
Transfers Out

Tolal olher financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balancs (deficits) -beginning of year

Fund balancos (d6ficits) - end of year 2 026 RAO

$ $ 1,396,403
933,122

4,167
16,425
36,000
97,368

895,808

14,583

47,821

a4i 620

4,167
1,474

723,500
201,305
'199,675

225,618
76,451

4.167

4,'100,000 4,100,000
361,867

592,997

I 433 88i

(161,864) '155

1155I

(1,340) 4,167 350,280

3 6i6 68n149 1 lq1 439 323

s 149 1 1ql s d43 4qO 3 qa6 q60

$ $
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CIry OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

ME.
Foster
Trusl

Funds
Calvary

Cemetery Silvers
Trust

Church
Agency
FundBarr

Trust Trust B,L.U.E Totals

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1659 $ 1.944 't12 $ 2966 s 13.682 $$ 777 S 26.140

1.659 1.944 112 2.966 1 3,682 777 26.140

777

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Due to Other

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

777

777 777

1.659 1.944 5,112 2,966 13,682 25,363

$ '1.659 $ 1.944 $ ,112 $ 2.966 $ 13.682 $ $ 25.363
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Trust Funds
Joe E.
Barr
Trust

Edgar
Foster
Trust

Galvary
Cemetery

Trust

Zella
Silvers
Trust

Mulberry
Church
Trust Totals

Additions
lnterest lncome
Miscellaneous

Total Additions

$ $ $ $ $ 196
8,995

$ 196
8,995
9,1 919,1 91

Deductions
Culture and Recreation

Changes in Net Position

Net Position Beginning of Year

Net Position End of Year

1,596 29 29 1,654

(1,5e6)

3,255

(2e)

1.973 5.11 2

(2e)

2,995

9,1 91

4,491

7,537

17,826

$ 1,659 $ 1,944 $ 5112 $ 2,966 $ 13,682 $ 25,363
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

B.L.U.E

Balance
July 1,

2019 Additions Deductions

Balance
June 30,

2020
Assets

Cash
TotalAssets

$ 2,764
2,764

2,764
$ zla+

369 2,356ffi

369 2,356ffi

$ ttz
777

777m
Liabilities

Due to Other
Total Liabilities
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\1' WILLIAMS
& COM PANYp.c.

21 1st Avenue NW
P.O. Box 1010

Le Mars, lA 51031
Phone (712) 546-7801

Fax (712) 546-6543CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
City of Webster City, lowa

We have audited, in accordance auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
businesstype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City of Webster City, lowa's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 23,2020.

lnternal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Webster City,
lowa's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Webster
City, lowa's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Webster City, lowa's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internalcontrol
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control,
described as item 2020-001 in the accompanying schedule of findings that we consider to be a material
weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Webster City, lowa's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
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The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Sfandards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are described in Part lll of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City's operations for the year ended
June 30, 2020 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit
of the financial statements of the City. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

Gity of Webster City, lowa's Response to Findings

The City of Webster City, lowa's response to findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of finding. City of Webster City, lowa's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of City of
Webster City, lowa during the course of our audit. lf you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we would be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

Wtlht rnCrhV"'*/,7'C
Certified Pu bl ic Accou ntbnts

Le Mars, lowa
December 23,2020
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Part l: Summarv of the lndependent Auditors' Results

(a) Unmodified opinions were issued on the financial statements.
(b) A material weakness in internal control over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit of

the financial statements.
(c) The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements.

Part ll: Findinac Flalafad the Finan r:ial Sfafarnanfc'

lnstances of Non-Compliance:

No matters were noted.

Material Weakness:

2020-001 Financial Reportinq

Condition and Criteria - The auditors were required to propose and have management post
material adjusting journal entries to the fund financial statements in order for the financial
statements to conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Management is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Effect - The financial statements provided by management are not presented entirely in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Cause - With a limited number of personnel and current staff workload, the time constraints
and staff expertise do not allow for all required year end U.S. GAAP adjusting journal entries
to be posted.

Recommendation - We recommend that the City train additional staff on U.S. GAAP and
government accounting standards to help reduce the amount of adjusting journal entries and
increase their knowledge of the required reporting standards.

Views of Responsible Officials - City management feels that hiring additional personnel to
implement the additional U.S. GAAP adjusting journal entries would not be cost-effective.
However, management has and will continue to monitor this process on a regular basis.

Part lll: Other Findinqs Related to Statutorv Reportinq:

lll-A-20 - Certified Budqet

Condition and Criteria - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2020 exceeded the
budget in Public Safety, Community and Economic Development, and Business Type
functions.

Effect - The city is not in compliance with chapter 384.18 of the code of lowa.
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CITY OF WEBSTER CITY, IOWA
Schedule of Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Part lll: other Findinqs Related to statutorv Reportinq (continued):

Cause - The City approved a budget amendment on May 21,2020. With limited personnel
and time constraints, the City inadvertently omitted some items from the preparation of their
budget amendment. As a result, disbursements exceeded budget amounts for Public Safety,
community and Economic Development, and Business Type functions.

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter
384.18 of the code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the budget.

Views of Responsible Officials - The budget will be amended appropriately in the future, if
applicable.

ilt-B-20 -

lll-c-20 -

Questionable Exoenditures - We noted no questionable expenditures during our audit.

Travel ense - No expenditures of city money for travel expenses of spouses of city
officials or empl oyees were noted

lll-D-20 - Business Transactions - Business transactions between the City and City officials are
detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction/Description Amount

Tile Pros, lnc. - Brandon Hayes, Fireman
Zehner Safety - Don Zehner, Fireman
Estlud Heating & AC - Jeremy Estlud, Fireman
TMI- Brandon Hayes, Fireman

Contractor
Supplies
Repair

Contractor

2,525
900
707
210

$

$

$

$

lll-E-20 -

lll-F-20 -

ilt-G-20 -

ilt-H-20 -

lll-r-20 -

These transactions do not appear to represent a conflict of interest since the total
transaction was less than $6,000 during the year, per Chapter 362.5(3)(j) of the code of
lowa.

Restricted Donor Activity - No transactions were noted between the city, city officials, City
employees and restricted donors in compliance with Chapter 688 of the Code of lowa.

Bond Coveraqe - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance
with statutory provisions. However, we recommend that the amount of coverage be
reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Council Minutes - We noted no transactions requiring approval which had not been
approved by the Council.

Revenue Bonds - No violations of revenue bond resolutions were noted.

Cash and lnvestments - We noted no instances of noncompliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 128 and 12C of the Code of lowa and the City's
investment policy.

Urban Renewal Annual Report - The urban renewal annual report was properly approved
and certified to the lowa Department of Management on or before December 1.

llt-J-20 -
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